THE THEORY OF INTERCOLLISIONAL INTERFERENCE EFFECTS IN ARBITRARY GAS MIXTURES



RODERICK ROC ARNOTI CAMPBELL







CANADIAN THESES ON MICROFICHE

I.S.B.N.

THESES CANADIENNES SUR MICROFICHE



National Library of Canada Collections Development Branch

Canadian Theses on Microfiche Service

Ottawa, Canada K1A 0N4 Bibliothèque nationale du Canada Direction du développement des collecti

Service des thèses canadiennes sur microfiche

NOTICE

The quality of this microfiche is heavily dependent upon the quality of the original thesis submitted for microfilming. Every effort has been made to ensure the highest quality of reproduction possible.

If pages are missing, contact the university which granted the degree.

Some pages may have indistinct print especially, if the original pages were typed with a poor typewriter ribbon or if the university sent us a poor photocopy.

Previously copyrighted materials (journal articles, published tests, etc.) are not filmed.

Reproduction in full or in part of this film is governed by the Canadian Copyright Act, R.S.C. 1970, c, C-30. Please read the authorization forms which accompany this thesis.

THIS DISSERTATION HAS BEEN MICROFILMED EXACTLY AS RECEIVED

AVIS

La qualité de cette microfiche dépend grandement de la qualité de la thèse soumise au microfilmage. Nous avons tout fait pour assurer une qualité supérieuré de reproduction.

S'il manque des pages, veuillez communiquer avec l'université qui a conféré le grade.

La qualité d'impression de certaines, pages peut laisser à désirer, surtout si les pages originales ont été dactivigraphilées à l'aide d'un ruban usé ou si l'univer, sité nous a fait parvenir une photocopie de mauvaise qualité.

Les documents qui font déjà l'objet d'un droit d'auteur (articles de revue, examens publiés, etc.) ne sont pas microfilmés.

La reproduction, même partielle, de ce microfijin est soumise à la Loi canadienne sur le droit d'auteur, SRC 1970, c. C-30. Veuillez prendre connaissance des formules d'autorisation qui accompagnent cette thèse.

> LA THÈSE A ÉTÉ MICROFILMÉE TELLE QUE NOUS L'AVONS RECUE



A KINETIC THEORY OF INTERCOLLISIONAL INTERPERENCE EFFECTS IN ARBITRARY GAS MIXTURES

> by Roderick R. A. Campbell

A Thesis submitted in partial fulfillment of the requirements for the degree of Master of Science

Department of Physics Memorial University of Newfoundland

July 1982

St. John's

and the second

0

5.

(C

Newfoundland

ABSTRACT

A kinetic theory of intercollisional interference effects in collision-induced translational absorption by arbitrary binary gas mixtures has been developed. Expressions have been derived fof the intercollisional dip in which no assumptions about the relative concentration ratios or relative masses of the two constituents, have been made. The variation of the halfwidth of the dip with the concentration ratio of the mixture has been obtained. The halfwidths at the infinitely dilute endpoints, n_A/n_B^{+0} and $n_A/n_B^{+=}$, predicted by this theory are in agreement with previous theoretical results. This theory also shows reasonably good agreement with the experimental data on the line shape as a function of n_An_B for various concentration ratios. Our curves provide the correct qualitative behaviour of the line shape.

In addition, expressions have been developed for intercollisional interference effects in collision-induced translational absorption by mixtures of arbitrary composition. That is, the above theory has been extended to include mixtures in which the number of constituents is arbitrary.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

I would like to thank my supervisor, Professor John Lewis, for suggesting this problem, for his guidance throughout, the project and for his assistance in the programming. I also wish to acknowledge gratefully the work of draft persons Roger Guest and Hanny Muggeridge. Several of the figures were plotted on a Tektronix 4662, which was kindly lent to me by Professor C. W. Cho. Many thanks to Mike Rayment and his co-workers in the Computer Science Department, to Eugene Colbourne, and Alex McCloy for their assistant in the graphics.

 During this project I was supported by an NSERC postgraduate scholarship for which I thank the Government of Canada. I am also indebted to Memorial University of Newfoundland which lent additional financial support by means of a graduate burgary.

Finally I wish to thank Yvonne MacNeil for the typing of this manuscript.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

ii

iii

v

vi

14

16

21

22

25

27

ABSTRACT

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

TABLE OF CONTENTS

LIST OF TABLES

LIST OF FIGURES

LIST OF SYMBOLS

CHAPTER 1 INTRODUCTION

>1.1 Collision-Induced Absorption

1.2 Many-Body Effects in Collision-Induced Absorption

1.3 Intercollisional Interference in Collision-Induced Absorption

1.4 Spectral Density at Zero Frequency.

1.5 Kinetic Theory of Intercollisional Interference

1.6 Present Work

CHAPTER 2 THEORY OF INTERCOLLISIONAL INTERPERENCE IN TRANSLATIONAL ABSORPTION BY BINARY GAS MIXTURES

2.1 Introduction

2.2 General Theory

2.3 Collisional Frequencies

2.4 Continuation of General Theory

iii

2.5	Intercollisional	Interference	
	at Zero Frequency	6 ¹ 1 1 4 1	

- 2.6 A Simplified Expression for the Line-Shape Function
- 2.7 Calculations and Results

2.8 Comparison with Experiment; Conclusions

- CHAPTER 3 THEORY OF INTERCOLLISIONAL INTERFERENCE IN TRANSLATIONAL ABSORPTION BY GAS MIXTURES OF ARBITRARY COMPOSITION
 - 3.1 Introduction
 - 3.2 General Theory **
 - 3.3 A Simplified Expression for the Line-Shape Function

REFERENCES

- 4

105

Page

57

79

86

86

		<u></u>	
			140
	LIST OF TABLES		318
	Walues of the Rigid-Sphere	Page	101
TABLE 2.1.	Parameters for He, Ne, Ar, () and Xe.	68	
<u>TABLE 2.2.</u>	Values of the Rigid-Sphere Parameters for He-Ne, He-Ar, He-Xe, Ne-Ar, Ar-Xe, and	69	
	Ne-Xe MIXULES.		
TABLE 2.3.	Analytical and Fitted Values of $a_{\rm A}/C$ for Ne-Xe and Ar-Xe		
	B Mixtures.	83	
			The second
			전화
	동안 가지 않는 것		
	Υ.		
	영양 김 영화 2011년 2		

このないないがいないが、いた、人のことがなる、ことがないないです。 さいたい たいさいたいがたち ないない ないない たいます

-

	0	Pa
Figure 2.1.	Collision sequence of a molecule of species A for $n=1$.	3
Figure 2.2.	Collision variables and related quantities.	3
Figure 2.3.	Collisional averaging.	3
Figure 2.4.	Collision sequences of a molecule of species A for	4
Figure 2.5.	Relative Fower Spectrum w(a) $\int_{-\infty}^{\infty} dt h = He-Ne$ Mixture for a Mole Fraction of He=0.1 and Density = 100 Am.	7
Figure 2.6.	Relative Power Spectrum $w(\omega)$ of the He-Ne Mixture for a Mole Fraction of He=0.01 and Density = 100 Am.	7
Figure 2.7.	Halfwidth of the Intercollisional Spectrum versus Mole Fraction of He for the He-Ne Mixture.	7
Figure 2.8.	Halfwidth of the Intercollisional Spectrum versus Mole Fraction of He for the He-Ar Mixture.	7
Figure 2.9.	Halfwidth of the Intercollisional Spectrum versus Mole Fraction of He for the He-Xe Mixture.	7

IST OF FIGURES

Figure 2.10.	Halfwidth of the Intercollisional
an de la prop	Ne for the Ne-Ar Mixture. 77
Figure 2.11.	Intercollisional line shapes for
	the Ar-Xe mixture at 2.3 cm ⁻¹ and 4.5 cm ⁻¹ .
있는 NAT 2018, 197	the second of the second se
Figure 2.12.	Intercollisional line shapes for
	the Ne-Xe mixture at 4.5 cm^{-1} . 81

Figure 2.13.

Intercollisional line shapes for the Ne-Xe mixture at 2.3 cm⁻¹.

82

LIST OF SYMBOLS

Symbols which occur only in a few successive pages are not in general included in this list.

Minen a parameter is closely related to several other Ovariables in an obvious way, we only include one as an example with the page on which it is defined. The other definitions are usually found on the same page or adjacent pages.

Special symbols not included in the list for Chapters, 1, 2, and 3 are included on page xv.

CHAPTER 1

SYMBOL	DESCRIPTION AND/OR DEFINITION REFERENCE AS APPLICABLE PAGE
A	molecular species A
A ₁	molecule of species A 7
Ã(ν)	absorption coefficient 3
C (τ)	autocorrelation function 12
D +	diffusion coefficient of molecule A 9
f(R) 3	intermolecular force 9 %
f(t) ★(ab)/+ \	force on molecule A ₁ at time t
TAB	molecule a of species A and molecule b of species B at time t 9
. J ³⁴	rotational angular momentum guantum number 5
m	mass of molecule A ₁ 8
M(t)	total induced dipole moment at time t
이 영화 문제 관람.	viii

SYMBOL	DESCRIPTION AND/OR DEFINITION REFERENCE AS APPLICABLE PAGE
™	mass of molecule a of species A 9 - 9
NA	number of molecules of species A 9
T	temperature 2
v	vibrational quantum number 5
v(t)	velocity of molecule A ₁ at time t 7
 • A State (A) = 1 	الم المعادية المراجع ا
v _{Aa} (t)	acceleration of molecule a of species A at time t 0 10
$v_{A}^{(ij)}(\omega)$	$\int_{-\infty}^{\infty} e^{i\omega\tau} \langle \vec{v}_{Ai}(t), \vec{v}_{Aj}(t+\tau) \rangle dt $ 12
w(ω)	(reduced) line shape [power spectrum of total induced dipole moment,
	spectral density] 14
W _f (ω)	spectral density of the force 8
Ψ _V (ω)	spectral density of the velocity 8
α ₁	binary absorption coefficient 3
ã,2	ternary absorption coefficient 3
μ (R)	induced dipole moment 9
$\vec{\mu}_{AB}^{(ab)}(t)$	dipole moment induced in molecule a ', of species A and molecule b of species B at time t 9
1 A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A	
ρ _a	dilute gas number density . 3
ρ _p .	perturbing gas number density 3
τc	characteristic time between collisions 5
π _d	duration of collision 1

circular frequency

CHAPTER 2 AND CHAPTER 3

SYMBOL	DESCRIPTION AND/OR DEFINITION AS APPLICABLE	REFERENCE
A	molecular species A	2
a	molecule a of species A	22
a _i . ≪	temporal superposition coefficient, 0 for AA,BB collisions, 1 for AB;BA collisions.	27
Α _Α (c ₁) ٩	$\int_{0}^{\infty} dc_{1}^{\prime} A_{A}^{\prime} (c_{1}^{\prime} c_{1}) \text{ for AB collisions}$	39
$A_{\mathbf{A}}(\mathbf{c}'_{1} \mathbf{c}'_{1})$	$\langle \widetilde{\hat{\mu}}(g, \tilde{c}) $ $\hat{\cdot} \hat{c}_{j} \rangle_{\xi, \phi', g, \phi'_{g}}$ for AB collisions.	39
$B_{\underline{A}}(\mathbf{c}_1 \mathbf{c}_1)$	$\langle \widetilde{\overline{\mu}}(g, \widetilde{C}) + \widehat{c}'_1 \rangle_{\xi, \psi, g, \psi_G}$ for AB collisions.	41
C(τ)	autocorrelation function of the total induced dipole moment	22
¢.	$\vec{c}_1 - \vec{c}_1$, apse line (see figure 2.2)*	35
e e	intracollisional part of spectrum	61
$c(\tau)_{intra}$	intracollisional autocorrelation function	29
C(I) inter	intercollisional autocorrelation function	29
$C_n^A(\tau)$	n th correlation coefficient, due to collision sequences of molecules of species A	30
C ^A i,i+n	correlation coefficient	30
¢1	velocity of molecule 1 before the collision (see figure 2.2)	34

x

SYMBOLS	DESCRIPTION AND/OR DEFINITION AS APPLICABLE	REFERENCE PAGE
c'1	(c_1^i, ξ, ϕ) : spherical polar coordinates of the velocity of molecule 1 after a collision (see figure 2.2)	.34
a	$ \dot{c}_{2} - \dot{c}_{1} = g_{12} $, magnitude of g_{12}	34
$G_{A}(\omega, c_{1})$	solution to the Fredholm equation	
	$\lambda_{\mathbf{A}}(\mathbf{c}_{1}) = \int_{0}^{\omega} \mathbf{d}\mathbf{c}_{1}^{\prime} \Delta_{\mathbf{A}}(\mathbf{c}_{1}^{\prime} \mathbf{c}_{1}) \mathbf{G}_{\mathbf{A}}(\boldsymbol{\omega}, \mathbf{c}_{1}^{\prime})^{\prime}$	48
4	collision label (represents the collision variables of the 1 th	
	collision, appears as subscript)	25
k	Boltzmann's constant	26
K _A (c' c ₁)	$\int_{0}^{d\xi} \sin\xi \int_{0}^{dg\overline{\mu}^{2}P}_{AB}(g,\xi,c_{1}^{\prime} c_{1})$	50
M(t) ?	total induced dipole moment	22
m _A	mass of molecule a of species A	22
^m o	m _A +m _B	26
	 denotes the hth subsequent collision from an arbitrarily chosen initial collision i (always occurs as subscript). 	29
n	2. n.+n., number density of mixtur	e 78
n _A	number density of molecular species	A 22
N _{AB}	three dimensional collision frequency	25
ý (x ₁)	distribution of collision intervals \mathbf{x}_{1}	31
P(g,ξ,c¦ c ₁)	conditional probability distributio of g, ξ, and c ₁ for a given c ₁ xi	n 36
	승규는 것 같은 것을 가지 않는 것을 했다.	1.0 - 1 - 1 - A

60

-

SYMBOL	DESCRIPTION AND/OR DEFINITION AS APPLICABLE	REFERENCE
P(c ₁),	Maxwell-Boltzmann distribution of speeds	36
p _{AB} (x _i)	distribution of collision intervals, x ₁ , for AB collisions	32
φ _{AB} (ω)	$\int_{0}^{\infty} p_{AB}(x_{i}) e^{-i\omega x_{i}} dx_{i}$	33
s _{AB}	$2\sum_{AB} \sqrt{2kTm_0/\pi m_A^m}_B$	26
.	1. temperature	25
	2. time (always used in limiting expressions)	30
ti	time of i^{th} collision	27
^u ÅB	relative frequency of AB collisions in the collision history of a molecule of species A	27
v	volume of system	25
₩(ω)	(reduced) line shape function, power spectrum	22
w(ω)	₩(ω)/N _{AB} • V	51
W(w) inter	intercollisional line shape function	31
^{W(ω)} intra	intracollisional line shape function	50
w ^A _n (ω) —	n^{th} contribution to $W(\omega)_{inter}$	
	due to collision sequences of molecules of species A	- 31
xA	mole fraction of species A	69

8 S. 1 B.

xii

1

SYMBOL	DESCRIPTION AND/OR DEFINITION AS APPLICABLE	REFERENCE PAGE
×i.	$t_{i+1} - t_i > 0$; time interval between collisions	30
۹Ă	intercollisional part of speetrum.	61
Ϋ́λ	measure of depth of intercollisiona dip	1 63
$\Delta_{\dot{A}B}(c_1^{\prime} c_1)$	$\hat{c_1} \cdot \hat{c}_1^{\prime} \hat{c}_1, \phi, g, \phi_g$ for AB collisions	40
$\Delta_{\mathbf{A}}(\mathbf{c}_{1} \mathbf{c}_{1})$	$\tilde{p}_{AB}(\omega) u_{AB} \Delta_{AB}(c_1^{\dagger} c_1) + \tilde{p}_{AA}(\omega) u_{AA} \Delta_{AA}(c_1^{\dagger} c_1) + \tilde{p}_{AA}(\omega) u_{AA}(c_1^{\dagger} c_1) + \tilde{p}_{AA}(\omega) u_{AA}(\omega) u_{AA}(c_1^{\dagger} c_1) + \tilde{p}_{AA}(\omega) u_{AA}(\omega) u_{AA}(\omega) + \tilde{p}_{AA}(\omega) u_{AA}(\omega) u_{AA}(\omega) + \tilde{p}_{AA}(\omega) u_{AA}(\omega) + \tilde{p}_{AA}(\omega) u_{AA}(\omega) + \tilde{p}_{AA}(\omega) + \tilde{p}_{AA}(\omega) u_{AA}(\omega) + \tilde{p}_{AA}(\omega) + \tilde{p}_{AA$	c ₁) 47
Δ _A	average value of $\boldsymbol{\Delta}_{A}(\mathbf{c}_{1}^{\prime} \mathbf{c}_{1})$	58
Δ _{AB}	average value of $\tilde{\Delta}_{AB}(c_1^* c_1)$, chosen to be the mean persistance-of-veloc	ity 59-60
n	angle between \vec{c}_1 and \vec{c} (see figure	2.2) 37
μ ^(ab) (t)	dipole moment induced in molecule a of species A by molecule b of species B, at time t.	
φ μ(a) (t)	total dipole moment induced by molecule a of species A in all other molecules, at time t	24
μ ₁ (t)	dipole moment induced in the i th collision	25
τμ ₁ (ω)	Fourier transform of $\vec{\mu}_{i}(t)$	33
Ψį.	$\int_{-\infty}^{\infty} \dot{\vec{\mu}}_{i}(\tau) d\tau = \vec{\vec{\mu}}_{i}(0), \text{ time average of } \vec{\vec{\mu}}_{i}$	(τ)
	equivalent to value of $\dot{\mu_1}(\omega)$ at zer frequency	° 34/
v _a >	collision frequency of a single molecule of species A with both A and B molecules	26
Constant and	xiii	「金田村」

SYMBOL	DESCRIPTION AND/OR DEFINITION AS APPLICABLE	REFERENCE
V _{AB}	average collisional frequency of AB collisions of a single molecule of species A	65,67
•	<pre>(c',ξ,φ): spherical polar coordinates of the velocity of molecule 1 after a collision (see figure 2.2)</pre>	34
σ	rigid-sphere diameter	66,68
Σ _{ΑΒ}	total scattering cross section for AB collisions	26
τ	> arbitrary time interval	22
τc	characteristic time between collisions	22
τ _d	duration of collision	a 22
•	(c_1,ξ,ϕ) :spherical polar coordinat of the velocity of molecule 1 after collision (see figure 2.2)	es r 34
¢g	azimuth of \dot{g}_{12}	34
ώ	oircular frequency	22
wł	halfwidth of the intercollisional spectrum	71
	ADDITIONAL NOTATION IN CHAPTER 3	
aαα	molecule of species α	86
Α _ε (c ₁)	$+ \int_{0}^{d} dc_{1} A_{\varepsilon}^{\prime}(c_{1} c_{1})$	
	$\lambda_{\varepsilon}^{\gamma}(c_{1}' c_{1}) = \triangleleft_{i}^{\overrightarrow{i}}(g, \overrightarrow{c}) \cdot \widehat{c}_{1} \geq_{\xi, \phi, g, \phi_{g}}$	
	for sy collisions	98

SYMBOL	DESCRIPTION AND/OR DEFINITION AS APPLICABLE	PAGE
$B_{\varepsilon}^{\delta}(c_1' c_1)$	$\langle \vec{\hat{\mu}}(g, \vec{C}) \cdot \hat{c}'_1 \rangle_{\xi, \phi, g, \phi_g}$ for eð	意為書
医乳白氨	collisions	98-
$G_{\varepsilon}^{\gamma}(\omega,c_1)$	solution to the Fredholm equation	
	$A_{\varepsilon}^{\gamma}(\mathbf{c}_{1}) + \int_{0}^{\mathbf{d}} \mathbf{c}_{1}^{\prime} \Delta_{\varepsilon} (\mathbf{c}_{1}^{\prime} \mathbf{c}_{1}) G_{\varepsilon}^{\gamma}(\omega, \mathbf{c}_{1}^{\prime})$	102
Nα	number of molecules of species a	86
α,β,,ω	molecular species $\alpha, \beta, \dots, \omega$	86
$\Delta_{\epsilon\chi}(c_1^\prime c_1)$	${}^{<\!\hat{c}}_{i}\!\cdot\!\hat{c}_{i}^{\prime>}{}_{\xi,\phi,g,\phi_g}$ for $\epsilon\chi$ collisions	100
$\Delta_{\varepsilon}(c_1' c_1)$	$\sum_{\chi} \tilde{p}_{\varepsilon \chi}(\omega) \ u_{\varepsilon \chi} \Delta_{\varepsilon \chi}(c_1^{\prime} c_1)$	100

TIME AND COLLISIONAL AVERAGING NOTATION

>	time average; Chapters 1, 2, and 3 8	
··.>	collisional average; Chapter 2 25.	
ee!	이 아이는 것이 많은 것이 같아요.	
· 1	collisional average over concerning over a second s	

time average over ε collisions; Chapter 3

93,94

CHAPTER 1

INTRODUCTION

.1 Collision Induced Absorption

The phenomenon whereby molecular collisions give rise to optical transitions forbidden in free molecules, is referred to as collision-induced absorption. When molecules collide, the intermolecular interaction causes a distortion of the charge configuration of the colliding molecules." At low densities, one can neglect ternary and higher order collisions and only consider the effects due to binary encounters. Such an encounter between unlike non-polar molecules induces a dipole moment that lasts for the duration of the collision, Td. Thus, light can be emitted or absorbed. by the colliding pair, via this temporary dipole moment. For polyatomic molecules, this induced dipole moment is modulated by the rotational, vibrational and relative translational motions of the two molecules. Thus, absorption of light due to this dipole moment gives rise to rotation, rotation-vibration, and pure translational spectra. The rotation and vibration spectra are centred about the rotational and vibrational frequencies of the colliding molecules. Collisions between monatomic molecules will give rise to a pure translational spectrum in the far infrared extending down to zero frequency. A characteristic property of collision-induced absorption spectra is that the integrated intensities are

approximately proportional to the square of the density of the gas, or in the case of a binary gas mixture, approximately proportional to the product to the partial densities. Another important characteristic is due to the fact that absorption can only take place for the duration of a collision, τ_d , which is typically of the order of 10^{-13} s. The resulting spectra then have widths of the order of τ_d^{-1} , roughly 100 cm⁻¹, hence are very broad. Because of this dependence on τ_d , the line shape has a marked temperature dependence with ω_b proportional to T^{-5} .

The phenomenon of collision-induced absorption was first discovered by Crawford, Locke, and Welhe (19(9), when they observed collision-induced vibrational apectra in compressed and liquid oxygen. Subsequently collision-induced sectra in pure hydrogen, hydrogen-rare gas, and rare gas mixtures have been studied extensively. Much of the experimental work on collision-induced absorption was carried out by H. L. Welsh and collaborators at Toronto. Detailed descriptions of their research have been given by Welsh (1974) and Welsh (1974). Many of the theoretical contributions to the study of integrated collision-induced spectra were due to Van Kranendonk et al (Van Kranendonk and Bird 1951; Van Kranendonk 1957, 1958, 1959; Van Kranendonk and Kiss 1959; Poll and Van Kränendonk 1951). Also, spectral line shape calculations have been extriced out by Tanimoto (1955), Levine and Birnbaum (1967), Levine (1967), Okada, Kajikawa and Yamamoto (1968), Sears (1968), Levis and Van Kranendonk (1972) and Levis (1972). A bibliography on publications in collision-induced absorption appearing before 1975 has been compiled by Rich and McKellar (1976).

1.2 Many-Body Effects in Collision-Induced Absorption

The collision-induced absorption spectrum of a gas is modified by several many-body effects as the density of the gas is increased. For a binary gas mixture, the integrated absorption coefficient is given to a high degree of accuracy

(1.1)

 $\int_{-\infty}^{\infty} \widetilde{A}(v) dv = \widetilde{\alpha}_{1} \rho_{a} \rho_{p} + \widetilde{\alpha}_{2} \theta(\rho^{3})$

where $\rho_{\rm a}$ and $\rho_{\rm p}$ are the densities of the dilute gas and the perturbing gas respectively, and \ddot{a}_1 and \ddot{a}_2 are the binary and ternary absorption coefficients (Van Kranendonk 1957). In this work we assume we will be dealing with densities low enough so that the righthand side of (1.1) can be approximated by the first term only. This is equivalent to assuming that the absorption is entirely due to binary collisions, and neglects the many-body effect of ternary and higher order collisions. At liquid densities in dilute B2-foreign gas mixtures, it appears that the H2 molecule can be temporarily trapped by a cage of foreign gas atoms which lends a diffusive character to the motion of this molecule. Hence, the effective

duration of a collision with a given foreign gas atom is increased, and thus the line shape is narrowed (Zaidi and Van Kranendonk 1971). This is observed in the characteristic line narrowing of the rotational lines in the induced vibrational spectrum of Ho-Ar mixtures (de Remigis, Mactaggart, and Welsh 1971). This same mechanism of temporary trapping by foreign gas atoms, when it involves two or more Ho molecules is believed to give rise to the appearance of H2 double transitions in the first overtone region of H2 in dense H2-Ar mixtures (Mactaggart 1971). The above mentioned phenomena of pressure narrowing and H2 double transitions only become significant at near. liquid densities and will not be treated here. However, even at relatively low densities, many-body effects have important consequences in collision-induced absorption spectra. The correlations that exist between successive binary collisions experienced by a molecule give rise to the phenomenon of intercollisional interference. Intercollisional interference is the subject of this thesis and is described in detail below.

1.3 Intercollisional Interference in Collision-Induced Absorption

The force pulses on a molecula in a gas in successive collisions are negatively correlated, i.e., they tend to point in opposite directions. If no such correlation ware present, the molecule would perform an unrestricted random walk in velocity space, and hence the expectation value of its energy would increase without limit in time (Chandrasekhar 1943). The negative corfolation is strong enough so that the spectral density of the total force, on a particular molecule in the gas, dips to zero at zero frequency. The behavior of the spectral density at zero frequency will be discussed in more detail in section 1.4. This force correlation has important effects in nuclear electric dipole relaxition, as pointed out by Purcell (1960). He obtained an expression for the spectral density of the force which showed that the width of the dip is characterized by the mean collisional frequency, τ_0^{-1} . Thus, the width of the dip is proportional to the density.

This force correlation also has important consequences in collision-induced spectra, as shown by Van Krahendonk (1968). The isotropic part of the induced dipole moment is due to the short range overlap of the molecular charge clouds, and is directed parallel or nearly parallel to the intermolecular force. As a result of the negative gorrelation in the force pulses, there arises a negative correlation in the force pulses, there arises a negative induced in successive collisions. This leads to destructive interference in the radiation processes due to this isotropic component, occurring during successive binary collisions. Hence, in H_1 -foreign gas mixtures dilute in H_2 , the collision-induced fundamental vibrational hand of hydrogen, the Q branch ($\Delta v = 1$, $\Delta I = 0$), has an intercollisional interference dip, the halfwidth of which is approximately linear in the density of the foreign gas. The two components formed by this dip, denoted Q_p and Q_q , are related by a Boltzmann factor (Hunt and Welsh 1964).

The anisotropic part of the dipole moment, on the other hand, is induced primarily by the longer ranged guadrupolar interaction (Van Kranendonk and Bird 1952; Van Kranendonk 1957, 1958). It is highly dependent on the orientation of the colliding molecules, and not in general directed parallel to the intermolecular force. As a result, the negative correlation that is present in the isotropic component of the dipole moments induced in successive collisions will be much weaker for the anisotropic component of these induced dipole moments. Thus, the lines that are due to this anisotropic component, the S lines $(J_3 = 2)$, will only weakly show the dip that is the experimental manifestation of intercollisional interference (Poll, Hunt and Macteggart 1975; experimental work by Reddy and Lee (1968) and Reddy and Chang (1973)).

It is evident that pure translational spectra should also show an intercollisional interference dip in the spectral density of the total induced Apole moment. This was predicted by Van Kranendonk (1968), who showed that in raro gas mixtures a dip should occur about zero frequency, with a with equal to τ_0^{-1} . This was verified by Marteau, Va and Vodar (1969), who observed a number of abgorption spectra in various compressed rare gas mixtures down to a minimum frequency of 16 cm⁻¹. Spectra of gas mixtures at a minimum frequency of about 1 cm⁻¹ later obtained by Muc, Reeser and Dagg (1971), and Dagg, Reesor and Urbaniak (1974), also confirmed this result.

In pure hydrogen, intercollisional interference is manifested in a dip occurring in the Q branch of the fundamental vibrational band, the halfwidth of which is approximately linear in the density of hydrogen. The first overtone region, which consists of the pure overtone and double vibrational transfirm, is due entirely to quadrupole induction and shows no observable.dip (Hare and Welsh 1959).

1.4 Spectral Density at Zero Frequency

Consider a binary mixture of inert gases in thermal equilibrium, in which one species, λ_i is dilute enough so that the gas can be treated as a single molecule, λ_i , moving in a cloud of B molecules. As mentioned previously, the negative correlation in the force pulses experienced by the particular molecule λ_i is strong enough so that the spectral density of the total force dips to zero, at zero frequency. This spectral density of the total force can be shown to exhibit an α^2 behavior for low ω (Van Kranendonk 1968). Let the total force on λ_i at time the $\tilde{f}(t)$, and let $\tilde{V}(t)$ be its velocity at time t. Then the force and velocity autocorrelation

"In this thesis we will use the terms spectral density, (reduced) line shape function and power spectrum (of the induced dipole moment) interchangably. functions are "

Subst

or

$$-\frac{d}{dt}$$
 $\frac{1}{2}$ $\frac{$

$$\langle \vec{v}(t) \cdot \vec{v}(t + \tau) \rangle$$

respectively, where <...> denotes an average over time t. Using Newton's laws we obtain

$$\frac{d^2}{d\tau^2} < \vec{v}(t) \cdot \vec{v}(t + \tau) > = \frac{1}{\pi} \frac{d}{d\tau} < \vec{v}(t) \cdot \vec{t}(t + \tau) > (1.4)$$

(1.2)

As the system is in equilibrium, $\vec{v}(t)$ and $\vec{f}(t)$ are stationary, so we have

$$\langle \vec{v}(t) \rangle = \vec{t}(t + \tau) > = \langle \vec{v}(t - \tau) + \vec{t}(t) > (1.5)$$

itution of (1.5) into (1.4) gives

$$\begin{aligned} \frac{d\hat{\tau}}{d\tau^2} & \langle \vec{v}(t) + \vec{v}(t+\tau) \rangle = \frac{1}{m} \frac{d}{d\tau} \langle \vec{v}(t-\tau) + \vec{t}(t) \rangle \\ &= -\frac{1}{m^2} \langle \vec{t}(t-\tau) + \vec{t}(t) \rangle \delta_{\tau} \quad (1,t) \end{aligned}$$

 $\oint \frac{d^2}{d\tau^2} < \vec{v}(t) \cdot \vec{v}(t+\tau) > = \frac{1}{m^2} < \vec{t}(t) \cdot \vec{t}(t+\tau) > (1.7)$

using the stationary property again. We now have an equation, (1.7), relating the force and velocity autocorrelation functions. Taking the Fourier transform of (1,7) we obtain

 $W_{f}(\omega) = m^2 \omega^2 W_{V}(\omega)$

where $M_{\rm fr}(\omega)$ and $M_{\rm v}(\omega)$ are the force and velocity spectral densities respectively. $M_{\rm v}(\omega)$ at zero frequency is proportional to the diffusion coefficient p, of molecule A₁ (Ewanzig 1963). Thus, at low frequency, the behavior of $M_{\rm f}(\omega)$ is given accurately by

(1.9)

 $W_{f}(\omega) = 6m^{2}\omega^{2}D$

Theff if the diffusion coefficient, D. of molecule A₁ is finite, the spectral density of the total force dips to zero, at zero frequency. In consequence, if the induced dipole moment $\tilde{u}(\tilde{R})$ is proportional to the intermolecular force $\tilde{f}(\tilde{g})$, the spectral density of the total induced dipole moment will show the same w⁵ behavior at low w, and hence the dip will extend to zero at zero frequency.

The above result is also true for finite concentrations (Van Kranendonk 1968), especially the Sth reference therein). Consider a gas with constituents A and B, with the number of molecules denoted NA and Na respectively. The masses of molecules of species A and B are mA and ma respectively. We denote by $\overline{T}_{AB}^{(AD)}(t)$, the dipole moment induced in molecule b of species B by molecule a of species A, and denote by $\overline{T}_{AB}^{(AD)}(t)$ the intermolecular force between this pair. Similarly $\overline{T}_{AB}^{(AD)}(t)$ are the forces between two A molecules, a and a', and between two B molecules, b and b', respectively. $\vec{n}_{A}\vec{v}_{Aa}(t) = \sum_{k=1}^{N_{A}} \vec{f}_{AA}^{(ak)}(t) + \sum_{b=1}^{N_{B}} \vec{f}_{AB}^{(ab)}(t)$ (1.10)

where we introduce the convention that

time t

$$\vec{f}_{AA}^{(aa)}(t) = \vec{f}_{BB}^{(bb)}(t) = 0$$

Summing (1.10) over all molecules of species A we obtain:

As $f_{AA}^{(ak)}(t) = f_{AA}^{(ka)}(t)$, the first sum on the right-hand side of the above equation is identically zero. Hence we obtain

$$\frac{N_{A}}{\sum} \sum_{a=1}^{N_{B}} \hat{t}_{AB}^{(ab)}(t) = m_{A} \sum_{a=1}^{N_{A}} \hat{v}_{Aa}(t).$$
(1,11)

Now if the dipole moment induced in an AB pair were exactly, proportional to the intermolecular force between the components of the pair, i.e. if

$$\dot{\mu}_{AB}^{(ab)}(t) = \dot{f}_{AB}^{(ab)}(t)$$
 (1.12)

suppressing the coefficient of proportionality for convenience, then the total induced dipole moment would be

$$\vec{M}(t) = \sum_{\substack{a=1 \ b=1}}^{N_A} \sum_{\substack{b=1 \ aB}}^{N_B} \vec{\mu}_{AB}^{(ab)}(t) = \sum_{\substack{a=1 \ b=1}}^{N_A} \overline{f}_{AB}^{(ab)}(t)$$

Using (1.11) above, this reduces to

$$\vec{M}(t) = m_{A} \sum_{a=1}^{A} \vec{v}_{Aa}(t)$$
 (1.13)

This is subject to the approximation that the intermolecular forces and induced dipole moments are pairwise additive. Pairwise additivity is known to be a good approximation, although it is not exact (Reed and Gubbins 1973; Nem Kranendonk 1957).

 Pquation (1.13) shows that, given pairwise additivity of forces and induced dipole moments, and the assumed proportionality (1.12), the total induced gipole moment is proportional to the total force on the center of mass of the A (or of the B) molecules.

As shown above, the fact that the velocity of a molecule of species A is stationary in equilibrium is responsible for the intercollisional interference dip extending to zero, assuming (1.12), in the case that A is infinitely dilute. Similarly, for AB mixtures of arbitrary concentration, the fact that the center of mass velocity of the A molecules is stationary will also cause the intercollisional interference dip to extend to zero, under the assumption of (1.12). This we will now show in detail, following tewis (1982).

From (1.13) we have

 $\vec{M}(t) + \vec{M}(t+\tau) = m_A^2 \sum_{a=1}^{1} n_A = \vec{V}_{Aa}(t) + \vec{V}_{Aa}(t+\tau) = (1,14)$

Hence the autocorrelation function of the total induced dipole

moment is given by

$$\begin{split} r_1 &\equiv \sqrt{n} \left((t) - \tilde{N} \left(t + \tau \right) \right) \\ &= m_A^2 \left(N_A \cdot \vec{v}_{A1} \left(t \right) - \vec{v}_{A1} \left(t + \tau \right) \right) \\ &+ \frac{N_A \left(N_A - 1 \right)}{2} \left(\sqrt{v}_{A1} \left(t \right) - \vec{v}_{A2} \left(t + \tau \right) \right) \\ &+ \sqrt{v}_{A1} \left(t + \tau \right) - \vec{v}_{A2} \left(t \right) \right) \end{split}$$

as all A molecules are equivalent.

Now

$$\begin{split} c\vec{v}_{AL}(t) & \cdot \vec{v}_{AJ}(t+\tau) > \frac{d}{d\tau} c\vec{v}_{AL}(t) & \cdot \vec{v}_{AJ}(t+\tau) > 1 \\ & = \frac{d}{d\tau} c\vec{v}_{AL}(t-\tau) \cdot \vec{v}_{AJ}(t) > 1 \end{split}$$

by the stationary property of \vec{v}_{Ai} (t), and this equals

 $\frac{d^2}{d\tau^2} < \vec{v}_{AL}(t - \tau) \cdot \vec{v}_{Aj}(t) >$

= $\frac{d^2}{d\tau^2} \langle \vec{v}_{Ai}(t) + \vec{v}_{Aj}(t + \tau) \rangle$

again using the stationary property of $\vec{v}_{Ai}(t)$.

Hence, taking the Fourier transforms of both sides of (1/15), we find that the spectral density of the total induced dipole moment can be written as

 $W(\omega) = \omega^2 \{m_{\tilde{A}}^2 \ N_{\tilde{A}} \ V_{\tilde{A}}^{(1\,1)}(\omega) + m_{\tilde{A}}^2 \ N_{\tilde{A}}(N_{\tilde{A}}-1) \ \text{Re} \ V_{\tilde{A}}^{(1\,2)}(\omega)\} \ (1.16)$

where

 $\nabla_{\mathbf{A}}^{(\mathbf{i}\mathbf{j})}(\omega) = \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} e^{\mathbf{i}\mathbf{d}\mathbf{t}} \langle \vec{\mathbf{v}}_{\mathbf{A}\mathbf{i}}(\mathbf{t}) + \vec{\mathbf{v}}_{\mathbf{A}\mathbf{j}}(\mathbf{t} + \mathbf{t}) \rangle d\mathbf{t}$ (1.17)

For an isolated system $\vec{v}_{A1}(t)$ is bounded and will greatly exceed the mean thermal velocity only with very low probability. The correlation function $\vec{v}_{A1}(t) \cdot \vec{v}_{A1}(t+t)$ in three dimensions will then show, at worst, a weak $(^{-1/2}$ tail (Cohen 1975), so that the Fourier transforms $V_A^{(1)}(u)$ will be finite for small u. Hence, because of the u^2 factor, w(u)will go to zero as the frequency approaches zero. This is assuming of course, the proportionality of the intermolecular force and the induced dipole moment.

We note that an alternative expression for $\psi(\omega)$ of the same form as (1.16), but in terms of $m_B,\;N_B$ and $\tilde{v}_{B1}(t)$ can be derived in the same way as (1.16).

The behavior of the spectral density shown above, for arbitrary concentrations, can be understood by considering two molecules of species A, A, and A_2 , moving in a gas of B molecules. A collision of A, with A; ruins the correlation between the dipole moments induced in the S molecules by A₁ in the collisions immediately before and immediately after the collision with A₂. Initially one might expect that this effect, caused by an increase in concentration of species A, will lead to a reduction of the depth of the dip in the spectral density. Jowever, there now exists an additional correlation between the dipole moments induced by A₁ and A₆ in their collisions with B molecules immediately following the A₁A₂ collision, After the A₁A₂ collision, A₁ and A₈ will tend to move in opposite directions, and hence the dipole moments induced by these two molecules in their next collisions will, on the average, be in opposite directions. This additional correlation tends to compensate for the lost correlation above, so that the relative concentration of the mixture will not reduce the depth of the dip in the spectral density at zero frequency.

1.4

1.5 Kinetic Theory of Intercollisional Interference

The line shape w(w) of the dip at non-zero frequency has been studied by Van Kranendonk (1968). In obtaining his expressions for the intercollisional interference dip, he used the simplifying assumptions that only immediately successive. collisions are correlated, that the induced dipole moment shows the same R dependence as the intermolecular force, and that ternary and higher order collisions can be neglected. Lewis and Van Kranendonk (1972) developed a general kinetic theory of intercollisional interference effects for Lorentz gases dilute in one component in which the first two assumptions above were relaxed but the third retained. They considered a very light molecule moving in a gas of heavy perturbing molecules which is assumed to form a cloud of randomly distributed stationary scatterers. Correlations between all the collisions in the collision sequence of the light molecules were taken into account, with no special relation assumed

between the dipole moment and the intermolecular force. They obtained expressions for the depth of the intercollisional interference dip and the shape of the intercollisional spectrum. The theory of Lewis and Van Kranendonk has successfully fit spectra, obtained through computer simulation by Lewis and Tjon (1978): Intercollisional interference effects were simulated for a two-dimensional hard disk Lorentz gas at various densities. The theory correctly fit the spectra for low densities, but extensions to higher densities proved unsuccessful. In particular, the depth of the dip at low densities was correctly predicted; a result which had not been available from experiment at that point. The primary limitations of this theory are that since it is a kinetic theory, it is valid only for low densities, up to a few hundred amagat, and one constituent of the binary mixture must be of much smaller mass and much more dilute than the other constituent. Lewis (1972) extended this theory to include gases where the restriction on the relative masses of the molecules was relaxed. This theory improved significantly the agreement between theoretical and experimental curves for the intercollisional halfwidth as a function of density in the induced fundamental band of H2-He mixtures (Mactaggart 1972). Similar curves were obtained with Ar, Kr; and Xe as perturbing gases, but since H2 is much less massive than these atoms, the finite mass correction is quite small in comparison with experimental uncertainty. This theory however, retains the

15
assumption that one of the constituents is much more dilute than the other. Since experiments in collision-induced absorption are not performed, in general, under highly dilute conditions, it is desirable to extend this theory to include binary mixtures of arbitrary concentration. This was attempted by Wong (1978), who derived expressions for intercollisional interference effects in binary rare-gas mixtures of arbitrary concentration. However, only correlations between immediately successive collisions were considered, and hence his results are limited to systems of very low density. It is the aim of this work to extend the theory of Lewis and Van Kranendonk to include binary mixtures of gases in which no assumptions are made about the relative masses and number densities of the constituents, and where correlations between all the collisions in a collision sequence of a molecule are considered.

16:

1.6 Present Work

In Chapter 2, we develop a theory of intercollisional interference effects whose expressions are valid for arbitrary binary mixtures of rare gases, at low density. This theory is extended in Chapter 3, to include gases in which the number of constituents is arbitrary.

The entire collisional-induced spectrum can be calculated assuming that the intermolecular force and induced

dipole moment are known. The dependence of the intercollisional spectrum on the parameters characterizing the system, such as concentration ratio (expressed as mole fraction), density and temperature can be obtained in principle from our general expressions. The evaluation of our general results requires a great deal of computation, which is probably not warranted by the present experimental data. After approximation, however, we obtain expressions for the intercollisional interference dip which are readily applicable. At this level of approximation our results constitute a generalization of the work of Van Kranendonk (1968) to arbitrary concentration ratios and to include persistance-of-velocity effects (as was done in TITE .2*) . In particular, our theory is most useful in the calculation of $W(\omega)$ at low frequencies where the interference is greatest. We obtain the dependence of the halfwidth of the intercollisional spectrum on the concentration ratio for several binary raregas mixtures in section 2.7. The relative line shape as a function of n,n, for Ar-Xe and Ne-Xe mixtures has been plotted in section 2.8. These curves were calculated at 2.3 cm-1 and 4.5 cm⁻¹ for various number density ratios, n_a/n_p , to provide a comparison with experimental data obtained by Wong (1978) .

In Chapter 2, the total dipole moment induced by a particular molecule a of species A; $\tilde{\mu}^{(a)}(t)$, is 'treated as a time series consisting of a series of randomly occurring pulses $a_k \tilde{\mu}_k (t-t_k)$, where $\tilde{\mu}_k (t-t_k)$ is the dipole moment induced "TIE 1-5 refers to a series of publications by Lewis and Van Kranendok (1972) and Lewis (1972, and 756).

in an AB collision in the kth binary collision, and a₁ = for AA collisions. The total dipole moment induced by a molecule b of species B is regarded in a similar way. We find that the reduced line shape function can be expressed as the sum of a pair of infinite series. The first series is due to the collision sequences of A molecules, where the (n+1) th term contains the correlation between an arbitrarily chosen initial collision of an A molecule and the nth subsequent collision of that molecule. The second infinite series is defined similarly for B molecules. As in TILE 2, these infinite series can be summed and $W(\omega)$ given in closed form (section 2.4). The evaluation of W(w) requires the solution of two integral equations. The development of the theory in Chapter 3 is similar to that above, but the reduced line shape function is now expressed as the sum of n infinite series, where n is the number of species. Again, these series can be summed and $W(\omega)$ given in a closed expression, the evaluation of which requires the solution of n integral. equations. The general evaluation of our closed expressions. for W(w) is difficult, and the major results of this thesis are obtained from a simplification of the expression for the line shape function in the binary mixture case. This simplification gives approximate solutions to the integral equations in explicit, closed form. A simplified form of the

line shape function for a gas with an arbitrary number of species has been obtained, but application of even this reduced expression is not easy.

In Chapter 2, the reduced line shape function is dependent on the induced dipole moment via the time integrated dipole moment u(g.C), defined in section 2.4 for AB collisions. The dependence on the intermolecular force arises through the collisional probability distributions $P(g, \xi, c_1 | c_1)$, defined in section 2.4, for all possible types of collisions, AA, AB, BA, and BB collisions. We do not evaluate these quantities explicitly as they are computationally difficult, even for simple physical models (TIIE 2) . In Chapter 3, the dependence on the induced dipole moments and the intermolecular forces arises in a similar fashion, but there are now more terms to take into account. We must consider the time integrated dipole moment $\overline{\mu}(q,C)$ for all the different dipole inducing binary collisions, AB, AC, BC collisions, etc. In addition, if there are n species present, the number of collisional probability distributions $P(q, \xi, c, | c,)$ to account for is n2.

In section 2.5, we prove that intercollisional interference in absorption by binary mixtures is always destructive at zero frequency. In section 2.6, we develop a simplified expression for the reduced line shape function. This simplification is achieved by approximating the quantity $A(c_{i}^{-}(c_{i}))$. defined in section 2.4, by an average value $\delta \delta(c, -c,)$ as was first considered in TILE 2. The solutions to the integral. equations, required for the evaluation of the expression for $W(\omega)$, can then be readily expressed in closed form. The resulting simplified expression was then used to obtain, in section 2.7, the line shape of the intercollisional spectrum and the dependence of the intércollisional spectrum on the concentration ratio of the mixture, and in section 2.8, the dependence of the line shape on nang at low frequencies. The latter result was calculated specifically to compare with the experimental data and the theoretical curves fitted to that data by Wong (1978). Satisfactory agreement in most cases was obtained up to $n_n n_p = 5,000 \text{ Am}^2$, but serious discrepancies exist beyond that point. We note that while the theoretical expression of Wong fits the data well up to 10,000 Am2, this expression cannot be considered generally valid at lowerfrequencies as it yields a negative line shape (section 2.8).

CHAPTER 2

21

Theory of Intercollisional Interference

2.1 Introduction

A theory of intercollisional interference effects is developed in this chapter for arbitrary binary rare-gas mixtures. That is, we will be dealing with translational absorption in a binary mixture of gases, in which the mass ratio, mm/mm, and the number density ratio, nm/ng, between the two constituents is arbitrary. Repeated reference will "be made to the theory of Lewis and Van Kranendonk (1972) and later extensions of this theory by Lewis (1972a, 1972b, 1973, 1976). For convenience, this series of publications will be denoted by the abbreviation TITE 1-5 (for "Theory of Intercollisional Interference Effects"). Following TIIE 1-5, we will assume that unlike molecules interact through pairwise additive central forces, and that the induced dipole moments are pairwise additive and instantaneously parallel to these forces. The assumption that To>>td will be made, so that only low densities will be considered. Ternary and higher order collisions can then be neglected, and a temporal superposition for the dipole moments induced in isolated binary collisions can be used to represent the total induced dipole moment in a particular molecule. A brief discussion regarding the underlying principles upon which our calculations are based is given in section 1 of TILE 1:

In this work we will consider the (reduced) line shape function $W(\omega)$, rather than study the absorption coefficient per wavelength in vacuo, $\tilde{A}(\omega)$, directly. The (reduced) line shape function $W(\omega)$ for translational spectra, is related to the absorption coefficient $\tilde{A}(\omega)$ through

$$\tilde{A}(\omega) = 2\tilde{\kappa} \frac{1 - e^{-\beta \hbar \omega}}{1 + e^{-\beta \hbar \omega}} W(\omega)$$
(2.1)

where $\tilde{\kappa} = 8\pi^3/3\hbar V$

and

 $W(\omega) = \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} e^{i\omega\tau} C(\tau) d\tau \qquad (2.2)$

(2.3)

is the Fourier transform of the autocorrelation function. C(1) of the total induced dipole moment $\tilde{M}(t)$, following THE 1. That is, W(ω) is the power spectrum of $\tilde{M}(t)$. In the classical approximation

 $C(\tau) = \langle \vec{M}(t) - \vec{M}(t + \tau) \rangle$

where < ... > denotes a time average, again following TIIE 1.

2.2 General Theory

To derive an expression for $\hat{w}(\omega)$, we first consider the dipole moment autocorrelation function $C(\tau) = \int The total$ induced dipole moment in a volume V, containing M_h molecules of species A and N_h molecules of species B is $\tilde{M}(\tau)$, and can be written as a sum of dipole moments induced in AB pairs

 $\vec{\tilde{M}}(t) = \int_{-1}^{N_{\mathbf{B}}} \int_{-1}^{1} \tilde{\psi}^{(\mathbf{ab})}(t) \qquad (2.4)$

where $\vec{\mu}$ (ab) (t) is the dipole moment induced by the interaction

between molecule a of species λ , and molecule b of species B. Then from (2.3) we have

$$C(\tau) = \langle \sum_{a,a'=1}^{N_{A}} \sum_{b,b'=1}^{N_{B}} \tilde{\mu}^{(ab)}(t) \cdot \tilde{\mu}^{(a'b')}(t+\tau) \rangle \qquad (2.5)$$

$$= \langle \sum_{a,a'=1}^{N_{A}} \sum_{b,b'=1}^{N_{B}} \tilde{\mu}^{(ab)}(t) \cdot \tilde{\mu}^{(ab')}(t+\tau)$$

$$+ \sum_{a,a'=1}^{N_{A}} \sum_{b=1}^{N_{B}} \tilde{\mu}^{(ab)}(t) \cdot \tilde{\mu}^{(a'b)}(t+\tau)$$

$$- \sum_{a=1}^{N_{A}} \sum_{b=1}^{N_{B}} \tilde{\mu}^{(ab)}(t) \cdot \tilde{\mu}^{(a'b')}(t+\tau)$$

$$+ \sum_{a,a'=1}^{N_{A}} \sum_{b=1}^{N_{B}} \tilde{\mu}^{(ab)}(t) \cdot \tilde{\mu}^{(a'b')}(t+\tau) \qquad (2.6)$$

The third term in (2.6) is subtracted since it is counted in both the first and second term of (2.6), but only occurs once in (2.5). It is a purely intracollisional term, expressing the correlation between collisions of the same two molecules. The fourth term in (2.6) expresses the correlation between collisions in which no molecule is common. This term is expected to be small for low densities and will be neglected.

Let the dipole moment induced by a molecule a of species A in all other molecules at time t be $\overset{i}{\mu}^{(a)}(t)$. We

can write

$$\dot{\mu}_{\mu}^{(a)}(t) = \sum_{b=1}^{N_{B}} \dot{\mu}_{\mu}^{(ab)}(t)$$
 (2.1

Similarly

$$\vec{\mu}^{(b)}(t) = \sum_{\substack{n=1\\ n \neq n}}^{N_A} \vec{\mu}^{(ab)}(t)$$
(2.8)

where $\hat{u}^{(D)}(t)$ is the dipole moment induced by a molecule Dof species B in all other molecules at time t. Neglecting the final term in (2.6) we have

$$C(\tau) = \langle \sum_{a=1}^{N_{A}} \sum_{b,b'=1}^{N_{B}} \overline{\mu}^{(ab)}(t) \cdot \overline{\mu}^{(ab')}(t + \tau)^{\prime}$$

 $\begin{array}{ccc} N_{\mathbf{A}} & N_{\mathbf{B}} \\ + & \sum_{\mathbf{a}, \mathbf{a}' = \mathbf{I} \rightarrow \mathbf{b} = \mathbf{I}} \prod_{\mathbf{a}} \mu^{(\mathbf{a}\mathbf{b})'}(\mathbf{t}) & \cdot & \mu^{(\mathbf{a}'\mathbf{b})'}(\mathbf{t} + \tau) \end{array}$

$$\sum_{a=1}^{A} \sum_{b=1}^{C} \overline{\mu}^{(ab)}(t) + \overline{\mu}^{(ab)}(t + \tau) >$$

Using (2.7) and (2.8) this reduces to

$$C(\tau) = \langle \sum_{\mu} \dot{\mu}^{(a)}(t) + \dot{\mu}^{(a)}(t + \tau)$$

N.

Nn.

+ $\sum_{\mathbf{b}=1} \vec{\mu}^{(\mathbf{b})}(\mathbf{t})$, $\vec{\mu}^{(\mathbf{b})}(\mathbf{t} + \tau)$

 $-\sum_{\substack{a=1\\b=1}}^{N_{A}}\sum_{\substack{b=1\\b=1}}^{N_{B}}\mu^{(ab)}\mu^{(t)} + \overline{\mu}^{(ab)}(t + \tau) > .$

Since all molecules of species A are equivalent, as are all molecules of species B, we have

$$\begin{aligned} &(\tau) = B_{A} c_{\mu}^{-1} \frac{(a)}{a} (\tau) + \frac{\tau}{\mu} \frac{(a)}{(b)} (t + \tau) > \\ &+ N_{B} c_{\mu}^{-1} \frac{(b)}{(b)} (t) + \frac{\tau}{\mu} \frac{(b)}{(b)} (t + \tau) > \\ &- N_{A} - N_{B} \\ &- c + \tau (ab) _{(a)} + \tau (ab) _{(a)} \end{aligned}$$

At low densities we can write the pure intracollisional term, in the temporal superposition approximation (TIIE 1), as

$$\begin{array}{ccc} N_{A} & N_{B} \\ \sum & \sum \mu^{+}(ab) \\ a=1 & b=1 \end{array} (t) \cdot \overrightarrow{\mu}(ab) (t + \tau);$$

= $N_{AB} \cdot v < \dot{\mu_{1}}(t) \cdot \dot{\mu_{1}}(t + t) >_{1}$ (2.10)

where <...>i denotes the collisional average of the dipole moments induced in AB collisions over all AB collisions, and N_{AB} is the total number of AB collisions per unit volume V per unit time, and is described along with related quantities in detail below.

2.3 Collisional Frequencies

a=1 b=1

Consider a binary mixture of gages in thermal equilibrium at temperature T, with constituents A and B, with number densities and masses denoted n_A , m_a and n_a , m_b

25

(2.9)

respectively. If \sum_{AA} , \sum_{AB} , \sum_{BA} and \sum_{BB} are the total southering cross sections for AA, AB, BA, and BB collisions respectively, then the three dimensional collision frequencies per unit volume are

26

NAB = NBA = 2nAnB LAB / 2kTmo/mmAmB

NAA/2 where NAA = 4nA SAA KT/TMA

NBB/2 where NBB = 4ng SBB/ *T/TMB

where $m_{Q_1} = m_{\overline{Q}_1} + m_{\overline{B}_2}$, and κ is Boltzmann's constant (Chapman and Cowling 1970).

Now, the collision frequency of a single A molecule with both A and B molecules, denoted v_{A} , is

 $v_{A} = (N_{AA} + N_{AB})/n_A$

= nASA + nBSAB

where

$$S_{A} = 4\sum_{AA} \sqrt{kT/\pi m_{A}}$$
$$S_{AB} = 2\sum_{AB} \sqrt{2kTm_{O}/\pi m_{A}}$$

Similarly

$$v_B = n_A S_{AB} + n_B S_B$$

We denote the relative frequencies of AA and AB collisions in the collision history of a molecule of species A by u_{AA} and u_{AB} respectively, and similarly denote by u_{BB} and u_{BA} the relative frequencies of BB and BA collisions in the collision history of a molecule of species B. Then clearly

 $\mathbf{u}_{\mathbf{A}\mathbf{A}} = N_{\mathbf{A}\mathbf{A}} / (N_{\mathbf{A}\mathbf{A}} + N_{\mathbf{A}\mathbf{B}})$; $\mathbf{u}_{\mathbf{A}\mathbf{B}} = N_{\mathbf{A}\mathbf{B}} / (N_{\mathbf{A}\mathbf{A}} + N_{\mathbf{A}\mathbf{B}})$

 $u_{BB} = N_{BB} / (N_{BA} + N_{BB}) : u_{BA} = N_{BA} / (N_{BA} + N_{BB}) .$ 2.4 Continuation of General Theory

and

The dipole moment autocorrelation function can be written as

$$\begin{split} C\left(\tau\right)/V &= n_{A}c_{\mu}^{2} \left(a\right)\left(t\right) + \widetilde{\mu}\left(a\right)\left(t+\tau\right) \\ &+ n_{B}c_{\mu}^{2} \left(b\right)\left(t\right) + \widetilde{\mu}\left(b\right)\left(t+\tau\right) \right) \end{split}$$

- $N_{AB} < \mu_i(t) + \mu_i(t + \tau) >_i$ (2.11)

from (2.10). We will now use a temporal superposition approximation for the dipole moments induced in isolated binary collisions to represent the total induced dipole moment in a particular molecule i.e.

 $\dot{\mu}^{(a)}(t) = \sum a_{i} \dot{\mu}_{i}(t - t_{i})$

where ai = 1 for AB collisions = 0 for AA collisions similarly for $\vec{\mu}^{(b)}(t)$. We then obtain $C(\tau)/V = n_{\mathbf{A}} \left\{ \sum_{i=1}^{n} a_{i} \hat{\mathbf{u}}_{i} (t - t_{i}) + a_{j} \hat{\mathbf{\mu}}_{j} (t + \tau - t_{j}) \right\}$ + $n_{\mathbf{B}} < \sum_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{q}} a_{\mathbf{k}} \dot{\mu}_{\mathbf{k}} (\mathbf{t} - \mathbf{t}_{\mathbf{k}}) + a_{\mathbf{q}} \dot{\mu}_{\mathbf{q}} (\mathbf{t} + \mathbf{\tau} - \mathbf{t}_{\mathbf{q}}) >$ - $N_{AB} < \bar{\mu}_{1}(t) \cdot \bar{\mu}_{1}(t + \tau) > 1$ (2.12) Taking out the intracollisional terms we obtain + $n_{\tilde{B}} \leq \frac{1}{k} a_{k}^{2} \tilde{\mu}_{k} (t - t_{k}) \cdot \tilde{\mu}_{k} (t + \tau - t_{k})$ $- N_{AB} \langle \vec{\mu}_{1}(t) \cdot \vec{\mu}_{1}(t + \tau) \rangle_{i}$ = $n_A v_A \langle a_1^2 \vec{\mu}_1(t) \cdot \vec{\mu}_1(t + \tau) \rangle_1$ + $n_{B}v_{B} < a_{k}^{2} \vec{\mu}_{k}(t) \cdot \vec{\mu}_{k}(t + \tau) >_{k}$ $N_{AB} \langle \vec{\mu}_i(t) + \vec{\mu}_i(t + \tau) \rangle_i$ (2.13)

where $\boldsymbol{\nu}_{A},$ and $\boldsymbol{\nu}_{B}$ are as defined in section 2.3. In the first term in (2.13), <...> denotes the collisional average over

 $C(\tau)_{intra}/v = n_{A} < \frac{1}{2} a_{i}^{2} \vec{\mu}_{i} (t - t_{i}) + \vec{\mu}_{i} (t + \tau - t_{i}) >$

all collisions involving molecule a of species A. The fraction of the coefficients a_1^c that are gnon-zero in then given by $u_{\rm AB}$, whigh is the relative frequency of AB collisions in the collision history of a molecule of species A, and is defined in section 2.3. Similarly, in the second term of (2.1), the fraction of the coefficients a_k^c that are non-zero is given by $u_{\rm BA}$. Consequently we obtain

 $C(\tau)_{intra}/V = \langle n_{k} v_{k} u_{kB} + n_{B} v_{B} u_{BA} - u_{AB} \rangle \langle \vec{u}_{1}(t) + \vec{u}_{1}(t + \tau) \rangle_{1}$ for the intracollisional autocorrelation function, where $\langle \dots \rangle_{1}$ denotes a collisional average over AB collisions. This reduces to

$$C(\tau)_{intra}/V = N_{AB} \langle \vec{\mu}_{i}(t) \cdot \vec{\mu}_{i}(t + \tau) \rangle_{i} \quad . \quad (2.14)$$

We will now consider the intercollisional terms in (2:12);

$$\begin{aligned} &(\mathbf{t})_{inter} / \nabla \stackrel{i}{=} \mathbf{n}_{k} < \sum_{\substack{i \neq j \\ i \neq j}} a_{i} \widetilde{\mathbf{u}}_{i} (\mathbf{t} - \mathbf{t}_{k}) \cdot a_{j} \widetilde{\mathbf{u}}_{j} (\mathbf{t} + \mathbf{t} - \mathbf{t}_{j}) \times \\ &+ \mathbf{n}_{k} < \sum_{\substack{i \neq j \\ k \neq q}} a_{k} \widetilde{\mathbf{u}}_{k} (\mathbf{t} - \mathbf{t}_{k}) \cdot a_{i} \widetilde{\mathbf{u}}_{i} (\mathbf{t} + \mathbf{t} - \mathbf{t}_{j}) \times \end{aligned}$$
(2.15)

This can be rearranged into the sum of two series, the $n^{\rm th}$ terms of which express the correlation between the ith and the $(i+n)^{\rm th}$ collisions:

$$\tilde{\mathbf{C}}(\tau)_{\text{inter}}/\tilde{\mathbf{V}} = \mathbf{n}_{\tilde{\mathbf{A}}} \sum_{n=1}^{\tilde{\mathbf{C}}} \mathbf{c}_{n}^{\mathbf{A}}(\tau) + \mathbf{n}_{\tilde{\mathbf{B}}} \sum_{n=1}^{\tilde{\mathbf{C}}} \mathbf{c}_{n}^{\mathbf{B}}(\tau)$$
(2.16)

where

$$a_{n}(\tau) = \langle \int_{1}^{n} [a_{i} \mu_{i}(t - t_{i}) \cdot a_{i+n} \mu_{i+n}(t + \tau - t_{i+n})]$$

+
$$a_{i+n} \bar{\mu}_{i+n} (t - t_{i+n}) \cdot a_{i} \bar{\mu}_{i} (t + \tau - t_{i}) >,$$
 (2.17)

and similarly for $C_{n}^{B}(\tau)$.

We introduce the variable $x_1 = t_{1+1} - t_1 > 0$, for the interval between two successive collisions, and use a time average in the above expressions;

i.e.
$$\langle f \rangle = \lim_{T \to \infty} \frac{1}{T} \int_0^T f(t) dt$$
.

Then (2.17) becomes

$$\begin{aligned} & {}^{A}_{n}(\tau) = \lim_{\tau \to 0} \frac{1}{\tau} \sum_{i} [C^{A}_{i,i+n}(\mathbf{x}_{i}^{-} + \dots + \mathbf{x}_{i+n-1}^{-} \tau) \\ & + C^{A}_{i,i+n}(\mathbf{x}_{i}^{-} + \dots + \mathbf{x}_{i+n-1}^{+} \tau)] \end{aligned}$$
(2.18)

with

$$C_{i,i+n}^{a}(\tau) = \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} a_{i} \vec{u}_{i}(t) - a_{i+n} \vec{u}_{i+n}(t-\tau) dt \qquad (2.18)$$

where the 1's refer to the collision variables of a molecule of species A. Similar expressions hold for $C^B_{\mu}(\tau)$.

The expression on the right hand side of (2.18) is equal to the average collision frequency $v_{{\bf h}'}$

multiplied by the mean of the quantity in square brackets

averaged over the time intervals x_1, \ldots, x_{i+n-1} and over the collision variables $1, \ldots, i+n$. We denote the average value of $G_{i,i+n}^{A}$ $(x_1 + \ldots + x_{i+n-1} - \tau)$ over the collision variables by

$$C_{i,i+n}^{A}(x_{i} + \dots + x_{i+n-1}^{-\tau}) > i$$
.

Then

$$p_n^{\mathbf{A}}(\mathbf{t}) = v_{\mathbf{A}} \int_0^{\infty} \dots \int_0^{\infty} p(\mathbf{x}_1, \dots, \mathbf{x}_{1+n-1})$$

 ${|||} < C_{i,i+n}^{A}(x_{i} + ... + x_{i+n-1}^{A} - \tau)||_{i}$

$$+ c^{A}_{i,i+n}(x_{1}^{} + \dots + x_{i+n-1}^{} + \tau) >_{i}] dx_{i} \dots dx_{i+n-1}$$
(2.19)

where $p(x_1, \dots, x_{i+n-1})$ is the distribution of the collision intervals x_1, \dots, x_{i+n-1} . From (2.16) and (2.2) we obtain

$$\sqrt{w}(b)_{inter}/v = n_{A_{i}} \prod_{n=1}^{n} w_{n}^{A_{i}}(\omega) + n_{B_{i}} \prod_{n=1}^{n} w_{n}^{B_{i}}(\omega),$$
 (2.20)

where

$$W_{\Pi}^{A}(\omega) = \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} e^{i\omega\tau} C_{\Pi}^{A}(\tau) d\tau$$
 (2.21)

with a similar expression for $W_{n}^{B}(\omega)$.

We will now evaluate the quantities $W^A_{R}(\omega)$ and $W^A_{R}(\omega)$ appearing in (2.20) and sum the series to obtain a closed expression for the intercollisional line shape function per unit volume, W(w) inter/V.

nm1

To evaluate $W^{A}_{\omega}(\omega)$, we follow a molecule of species

A, and consider all possible non-zero collision sequences for a given n. If n=1, then the only fion-zero collision sequence is the molecule of species A undergoing two successive collisions with molecules of species B (see Figure 2.1)



Figure 2.1. Collision sequence of a molecule of species A for n=1.

Then from the defining equation for $C^{A}_{n}(\tau)$, (2.19), and (2.21)

we obtain

$$\begin{split} y_{1}^{A}(u) &= \int_{-u}^{u} e^{iu\tau} v_{A} \int_{\frac{u}{2}}^{u} \theta_{AB}(x_{1}) \\ &= \left(< \int_{-u}^{u} g_{1} \hat{u}_{1}(t) + a_{1+1} \hat{u}_{1+1}(t - x_{1} + \tau) dt \right)_{1} \\ &= + \left(\int_{-u}^{u} g_{1} \hat{u}_{1}(t) + s_{1+1} \hat{u}_{1+1}(t - x_{1} - \tau) dt \right)_{1} dt_{1} d\tau, \end{split}$$

We note that the distribution of collision intervals $p(x_i)$.

appearing in (2.19) has now become $p_{AB}(x_1)$, denoting the distribution for AB collisions. The above equation reduces to

$$w_{i}^{A}(\omega) = 2v_{A} \int_{0}^{\omega} p_{AB}(x_{i}) e^{-i\omega x_{i}} dx_{i}$$

$$x < a_{i}\vec{u}_{i}(\omega) + a_{i+1} \vec{v}_{i+1}(-\omega) s_{i}, \qquad (2.23)$$

where

$$\vec{\mu}_{1}(\omega) = \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} e^{i\omega\tau} \vec{\mu}_{1}(\tau) d\tau$$

Since the collision sequence is an A molecule undergoing two successive collisions with B molecules, the fraction of the coefficient $a_{1a_{1a_{1}}}$ that is non-zero is u_{AB}^{*} . Letting

$$\tilde{\mathbf{p}}_{\mathbf{AB}}(\omega) = \int_{0}^{\infty} \mathbf{p}_{\mathbf{AB}}(\mathbf{x}_{\mathbf{i}}) e^{-\mathbf{i}\omega\mathbf{x}\mathbf{i}} d\mathbf{x}_{\mathbf{i}}$$
(2.24)

we obtain

$$A_{1}^{A}(\omega) = 2v_{A}u_{AB}^{2}Re [\tilde{p}_{AB}(\omega) < \vec{\mu}_{1}(\omega) + \vec{\mu}_{1+1}(-\omega) >_{1}]$$

$$(2,25)$$

We will now use the approximation

$$\vec{\mu}(t) = \sum_{i} \vec{\mu}_{i} \delta(t^{i} - t_{i}t_{i}) . \qquad (2.26)$$

where 6 is the Dirac delta function. This approximation is valid for low frequencies, but is inapplicable at high frequencies (THE 1). It is equivalent to assuming that in

苔

the calculation of the intercollisional spectrum at low densities, one can replace $\vec{\mu}_{\pm}(\omega)$ by its value at $\omega=0$, which is denoted $\vec{\mu}_{\pm}$. Following TIE 1,

The effect of the frequency dependence of $\vec{\mu}_{\perp}(\omega)$ on the line shape function is discussed in section 6 of TIIE 1. Using (2.27) in (2.25) we obtain

$$W_1^{\overline{A}}(\omega) = 2v_{\overline{A}} u_{\overline{AB}}^2 \operatorname{Re} [\vec{p}_{\overline{AB}}(\omega) < \overline{\vec{u}}_1 \cdot \overline{\vec{u}}_{1+1} > 1]$$
 (2.28)

In evaluating the correlation coefficient $\langle \tilde{u}_1 + \tilde{u}_{1+1} \rangle_1$ we will follow TTIE 2. We will first cohsider the general case of $\langle \tilde{u}_1 + \tilde{u}_{1+n} \rangle_1$, then set n=1 to obtain the coefficient in (2.28). Eight quantities are required to characterize a binary collision between spherically symmetric molecules with no internal degrees of freedom. The most convenient choice of parameters for collisional averaging is

 $\{\vec{c}_1, c_1, \xi, \phi, g, \phi_n\}$ (2.29)

where there is an additional discrete index s required if the intermolecular force has an attractive part (TTIE 2). In the above set, \hat{c}_1 is the velocity of molecule 1 before the collision, (c_1^{\prime}, c_1, s) are the spherical polar coordinates of the velocity of molecule 1 affer the collision in a coordinate system with the z-axis along \hat{c}_1 , $g = |g_{12}| = |\hat{c}_2 - \hat{c}_1|$, and \hat{s}_2 is the

-34

azimuth of $\mathfrak{F}_{i,2}$ in a coordinate system with the x-axis along

 $\vec{c} = \vec{c}_1 - \vec{c}_1$ (see Figure 2.2)



Figure 2.2 Collision variables and related quantities.

The set (2.29) has been shown to be equivalant to the standard set of collision variables $\{b, c, \tilde{c}_1, \tilde{c}_2\}$ in THE 2. Also, it has been pointed out in THE 2 that a knowledge of C and g is equivalent to a knowledge of b and g.

The projection of the time integrated dipole moment \vec{i} induced by a collision characterised by (b, ϵ , \hat{c}_1, \hat{c}_2) on the apse line is completely determined by b and q, and hence by C and g, according to our assumptions about the intermolecular force and induced dipole moment \vec{v} . Therefore, we write this projection as $\overline{\mu}(g,C)$. The time integrated dipole moment $\overline{\mu}$ appearing in (2.28) is parallel to the unit vector \widehat{C} along the appendimentation \widehat{C} along the appendimentation \widehat{C} and \widehat{C} and \widehat{C} and \widehat{C} along the set of the set

¹/_µ(g,Č) = µ(g,C)C

Since $\tilde{C} = \tilde{C}_1^* - \tilde{C}_1^*$ is completely determined by the subset $(c_1, c_1^*, \xi, \theta)$ of the set of collision variables (2,29), $\overline{1}^*$ is independent of the azimuth ϕ_{α} . In addition, the azimuth

s of $\hat{G}_1^{'}$, \hat{G} and \hat{g} is uniformly distributed about \hat{G}_1 . As a result, we only need the conditional probability distribution $P(g, t, c\hat{l}|_{G_1})$ of g, t and c_1 for a given c_1 , and the distribution of \hat{G}_1 , $P(\hat{G}_1)$, to evaluate the correlation coefficient $\hat{G}_1^{'}$, $\hat{G}_1^{'}$, $\hat{G}_2^{'}$, $\hat{G}_2^{'}$, $\hat{G}_1^{'}$, $\hat{G}_2^{'}$, $\hat{G}_1^{'}$, $\hat{G}_2^{'}$, $\hat{G}_1^{'}$, $\hat{G}_2^{'}$,

 $\zeta^{(g_i,\xi_i,c_i^{T}|c_i) = P(g_i,\xi_i,c_i^{T}|c_i)}_{i}$

 $P(c_1) = 4\pi c_1^2 P(c_1)$

and

since the gas mixtures are isotropic. $-F(c_1)$ is of course the Maxwell-Boltzmann distribution of speeds. In TUE 2, since A is treated as infinitely dilute, $\langle \overline{f}_1 \rangle + \overline{f}_{1,1,2} \rangle_1$ contains the

correlation between a collision, i, of an A molecule with a B molecule, and a later collision, i+n, of the same A molecule with another B molecule. Therefore, the distributions that are required for the evaluation of $\overline{v_{i}} \cdot \overline{v_{j+n}}_{i}$, are P(g, f, $c_i | c_i \rangle$ for AB collisions, and P($c_i \rangle$) for A molecules. In this work, since we are dealing with arbitrary concentrations of A and B molecules, we require the conditional probability distributions P(g, f, $c_i | c_i \rangle$ for all four possible types of collisions, AA, AB, BA, and BB molecules. These different quantities will be denoted by the appropriate subsoripts.

We denote the angles between \vec{e}_i and \vec{c} , and \vec{c} and \vec{c} by n and n' respectively. We take c_i to be the speed of molecule l before the kth collision of the collision sequence 1,...,i+n. However, the velocity of molecule 1 before and after a collision is still denoted by \vec{e}_i and \vec{c}_i without reference to the position of the collision in the collision sequence.

The average of a random vector over its azimuthal angle is clearly a vector parallel to the axis which the azimuthal angle is defined, if that vector is uniformly distributed in its azimuth. The quantities $\tilde{\mu}(q, \tilde{c})$ and \tilde{c}_1 are uniformly distributed in their azimuth 4 about \tilde{c}_1 in terms of the set of collision variables (2.29). Thus, the average of $\tilde{\mu}_{1+n}$

over all the variables of the (i+n)th collision except \vec{c}_{i+n} is a vector parallel to c_{i+n} which is the defining axis for the abimuthal angle. The average of this vector over all the variables of the (i+n-1)th collision except \vec{c}_{i+n-1} is a vector parallel to \vec{c}_{i+n-1} , and so forth. Thus, continuing in this way and following a collision sequence of an A molecule, $\vec{d}_i + \vec{\mu}_{i+n'1}$ can be expressed in terms of quantities defined for two collisions, an AA and an AB collision. The averaging process is shown schematically in Figure 2.3.



Figure 2.3 Collisional averaging.

If one follows a collision sequence of a B molecule, $\langle \tilde{\vec{\nu}}_i - \tilde{\vec{\nu}}_{i+n} \rangle_i$ can be expressed in terms of quantities defined for a BB and a BA collision. First, we will follow a collision

sequence of an A molecule. We will write the average of \tilde{v}_{i+n}^{i} over all the collision variables of the $(i+n)^{ih}$ collision except the velocity before the collision, \tilde{v}_{i+n}^{i} , as

AA(ci+n) ci+n

where $A_A(c_{i+n})$ is independent of \hat{c}_{i+n} . In terms of our collision variables this can be written as

$$\langle \vec{\mu}(g, \vec{C}) \rangle_{c_1'}, \xi, \psi, g, \psi_g = \lambda_{\vec{A}}(c_1) \hat{c}_1$$
 (2.30)

where

$$A_{\mathbf{A}}(\mathbf{c}_{1}) = \int_{0}^{\infty} d\mathbf{c}_{1}^{\dagger} A_{\mathbf{A}}(\mathbf{c}_{1}^{\dagger} | \mathbf{c}_{1})$$
(2.31)

and

$$\begin{split} A_{\mathbf{A}}(\mathbf{c}_{1}^{2} | \mathbf{c}_{1}) &= \overline{\mathbf{c}_{1}^{2}}(\mathbf{g}, \mathbf{\hat{C}}) + \mathbf{\hat{c}}_{1} \mathbf{\hat{c}}_{1} \mathbf{\hat{c}}_{1} \mathbf{\hat{g}}, \mathbf{\hat{g}}, \mathbf{\hat{g}}_{1} \mathbf{\hat{g}} \end{split} \tag{2.}$$

The subscript A on $\hat{\lambda}_{A}(c_{1})$ and $\lambda_{A}(c_{1}|c_{1})$ denotes the fact that we are following an A molecule, and the subscript AB on

 $P_{AB}(g, \xi, c_1|c_1)$ denotes the conditional distribution for

AB collisions, since the final collision in a collision Assequence of an A molecule is with a B molecule.

When (2.30) is averaged over all the variables of the (1+n-1) th collision except \hat{c}_{1+n-1} , we obtain

 $\hat{c}_{i+n-1} \int_{a}^{b} dc_{i+n} A_{A}(c_{i+n}) A_{AB}(c_{i+n}|c_{i+n-1})$

(2.33)

40

 $\hat{c}_{i+n+1} \int_{a}^{a} dc_{i+n} A_{A}(c_{i+n}) \delta_{AA}(c_{i+n}|c_{i+n-1})$

depending upon whether the collision is with another A molecule or with a B molecule. In terms of our collision variables

$$\Delta_{AA}(c_1'|c_1) = \langle \hat{c}_1 - \hat{c}_1' \rangle_{\xi,\phi,g,\phi_g} = \int_0^1 d\xi \sin \xi \cos \xi P_{AA}(\xi,c_1'|c_1) \cdot (2.34)$$
AB

and $P_{AA}^{-}(\xi,c_1^{+}|c_1)$ is the conditional distribution of ξ and c_1^{+} for AB

a given c_1 for $\frac{AA}{AB}$ collisions. The averaging process, continued

for $\overline{\hat{\mu}}_{i+n}$ over all the variables of the (i+n)th to (i+2)th

collisions and over all the variables of the (i+1) th collision

except \dot{c}_{i+1} , yields

 $\vec{c}_{i+1} \int_{0}^{\infty} dc_{i+n} \dots \int_{0}^{\infty} dc_{i+2} A_{A}(c_{i+n})$

 $\overset{\circ}{a_{AA}} (\mathbf{c}_{1+n} | \mathbf{c}_{1+n-1}) \overset{\circ}{a_{AA}} (\mathbf{c}_{1+n-1} | \mathbf{c}_{1+n-2}) \cdots \overset{\circ}{a_{AA}} (\mathbf{c}_{i+2} | \mathbf{c}_{i+1})$ $\overset{(2.35)}{AB} \overset{\circ}{AB}$

The average of $u(c_1^{'})\hat{c}_1^{'}$, $\hat{\mu}(g,\hat{c})$ for some function u over all of the collision variables (2.29), including $\hat{c}_1^{'}$, is

 $\begin{aligned} & <\mathbf{u}(\vec{c}_{1}^{\prime})\hat{\mathbf{c}}_{1} + \frac{1}{\hat{u}}(\mathbf{g}, \vec{c}) >_{\mathbf{c}_{1},1}\mathbf{c}_{1}^{\prime}, \mathbf{e}, \mathbf{\phi}, \mathbf{g}, \mathbf{\phi}_{\mathbf{g}}, \\ & = \int_{\mathbf{a}}^{\mathbf{a}} d\mathbf{c}_{1} \cdot \mathbf{F}_{\mathbf{A}}(\mathbf{c}_{1}) \int_{\mathbf{a}}^{\mathbf{a}} d\mathbf{c}_{1}^{\prime} \cdot \mathbf{u}(\mathbf{c}_{1}^{\prime}) \cdot \mathbf{F}_{\mathbf{A}}(\mathbf{c}_{1}^{\prime}|\mathbf{c}_{1}) \cdot , \end{aligned} \tag{2.36}$

(2.37)

where $B_{A}(c_{1}'|c_{1}) = \langle \overline{\overline{u}}(g, \overline{C}) \cdot \widehat{c}_{1}' \rangle_{\xi, \phi, g, \phi_{q}}$

 $= \int_{a}^{\pi} d\xi \sin \xi \int_{a}^{\infty} dg \, \widetilde{u}(g,C) \cos n' P_{AB}(g,\xi;c_1^{\dagger}|c_1)$

and the second second

The subscript A on $S_A(c_1^*|c_1)$ denotes the fact that we are following an A molecule, and the subscript AB on $P_{AB}(g, \xi, o_1^*|c_1)$ denotes the conditional distribution for AB collisions, since the first collision in a collision sequence of an A molecule is with a B molecule. We note that the expressions (2:32) and (2:37) for $A_A(c_1^*|c_1)$ and $S_A(c_1^*|c_1)$ differ only in the occurrence of cos n in the former and cos n, in the latter. These quantities are closely related by the Frinciple of Detailed Balancing, as shown in TIIE 2.

We then have

$$\langle \vec{\mu}_i \cdot \vec{\mu}_{i+n} \rangle_i = \int_a^{\infty} dc_{i+n} \cdots \int_0^{\infty} dc_i A_a(c_{i+n})$$

 $\overset{*\Delta_{AA}}{\underset{AB}{\overset{(\mathbf{c}_{i+n})}{\overset{(\mathbf{c}_{i+n-1})}{\overset{(\mathbf{c}_{i+2})}{\overset{(\mathbf{c}_{i+2})}{\overset{(\mathbf{c}_{i+1})}{\overset{(\mathbf{c}_{i+1})}{\overset{(\mathbf{c}_{i})}{\overset{(\mathbf{c})}{\overset{(\mathbf{c})}}}}}}}}}}}}}}}}}}}$

for a collision sequence of an A molecule. It can be easily seen that if one follows a collision sequence of a B molecule, ong obtains

$$\langle \vec{\mu}_{1} \cdot \vec{\mu}_{1+n} \rangle_{1} = \int_{0}^{dc} dc_{1+n} \cdot \cdot \cdot \int_{0}^{dc} dc_{1} A_{B}(c_{1+n})$$

 $\begin{array}{c} \times \ \Delta_{\mathbf{BB}}(\mathbf{c}_{i+n}]\mathbf{c}_{i+n-1}) \cdots \Delta_{\mathbf{BB}}(\mathbf{c}_{i+2})\mathbf{c}_{i+1} \succ \ \mathbf{B}_{\mathbf{B}}(\mathbf{c}_{i+1}|\mathbf{c}_{i}) \quad \mathbf{P}_{\mathbf{B}}(\mathbf{c}_{i}) \quad (2.39) \\ \mathbf{BB} \end{array}$

where .

$$A_{\underline{B}}(c_1^{\prime}|c_1) = \int_0^{\pi} d\xi \sin \xi \int_0^{\infty} dg \, \tilde{\mu}(g, C) \cos \pi P_{\underline{B}\underline{A}}(g, \xi, c_1^{\prime}|c_1) \quad (2.40)$$

and

$$\begin{array}{l} \underset{\mathbf{BB}}{\operatorname{BB}}(\mathbf{c}_1^{\dagger} | \mathbf{c}_1) = \int_{\mathbf{0}}^{\pi} \mathrm{d}\xi \, \sin \xi \, \cos \xi \, \tilde{\mathbf{P}}_{\mathbf{BB}}(\xi, \mathbf{c}_1^{\dagger} | \mathbf{c}_1) \\ \mathbf{BA} \\ \end{array}$$
(2.41)

$$\begin{split} & B_{B}(c_{1}^{\dagger}|c_{1}) = \int_{0}^{\pi} d\xi \sin \xi \int_{0}^{\infty} dg \, \overline{\mu}(g,C) \cos \eta^{\dagger} \, P_{B\bar{A}}(g,\xi,c_{1}^{\dagger}|c_{1}) \qquad (2.42) \\ & \text{The quantities } A_{B}(c_{1}^{\dagger}|c_{1}) \text{ and } B_{B}(c_{1}^{\dagger}|c_{1}) \text{ are related in the} \\ & \text{same way as } A_{A}(c_{1}^{\dagger}|c_{1}) \text{ and } B_{A}(c_{1}^{\dagger}|c_{1}) . \end{split}$$

We have now obtained general expressions for the correlation coefficients $\langle \hat{\nu}_1 + \hat{\nu}_{1\pm n} \rangle_1$ following collision sequences of both A and B molecules. These results can now be used to obtain explicit expressions for $w_n^{\rm B}(\omega)$ and $w_n^{\rm B}(\omega)$. We recall the following expression, (2.28), for $w_n^{\rm A}(\omega)$.

 $W_{1}^{\tilde{A}}(\omega) = 2v_{\tilde{A}} u_{\tilde{A}B}^{2} \operatorname{Re}[\widetilde{p}_{\tilde{A}B}(\omega) < \overline{\mu}_{1} \cdot \overline{\mu}_{1+1} > 1]$

Setting n=1 in (2.38), we obtain

and

$$\begin{split} & W_{1}^{A}(\omega) = 2v_{A}^{*} u_{AB}^{*} \operatorname{Re}(\widetilde{P}_{AB}(\omega)) \int_{0}^{\omega} dc_{i+1} \int_{0}^{\omega} dc_{i} \\ & = A_{A}^{*}(c_{i+1}) \cdot B_{A}^{*}(c_{i+1}(c_{i}), \frac{p_{A}^{*}(c_{i}))}{2}, \quad (2, 43) \end{split}$$

We will now consider $W^A_{\Lambda}(\omega)$. There are two non-zero collision sequences that an A molecule can undergo for n=2; (1) three successive collisions with B molecules, (2) a collision with a B molecule, followed by a collision with another A molecule, followed by a collision with a B molecule (see Figure 2.4).

n=2





Figure 2.4 Collision sequences of a molecule of species A for n=2.

For the contribution to $W_2^A(\omega)$, from the first sequence, (1), which we denote $W_2^A(\omega)_1$, from (2.19) and (2.21) we obtain

$$\begin{split} & \tilde{W}_{1}^{A}(\omega)_{1} = \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} e^{\pm \omega \tau} \hat{q} \tau \cdot \nu_{A} \int_{0}^{\infty} \int_{0}^{\omega} \rho_{AB}(\mathbf{x}_{1}) \cdot \rho_{AB}(\mathbf{x}_{1+1}) - \\ & \times [s \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} a_{1} \tilde{\mu}_{1}(c) + s \hat{a}_{1+2} \cdot \tilde{\mu}_{1+2} + (t - \mathbf{x}_{1} - \mathbf{x}_{1+1} + \tau)] d \mathfrak{S}_{1} \end{split}$$

 $+ < \int_{0}^{\infty} \alpha_{i} \vec{\mu}_{i}(t) \cdot \alpha_{i+2} \vec{\mu}_{i+2} (t - x_{i} - x_{i+1} - \tau) dt >_{i} dx_{i} dx_{i+1}$

$$\begin{split} & 2\nu_{\mathbf{A}}^{-} \operatorname{Re}[\widetilde{p}_{AB}^{2}(\omega) < a_{1}\vec{\mu}_{1}(\omega) + a_{1+2}\vec{\mu}_{1+2}(-\omega) >_{1}] \\ & 2\nu_{\mathbf{A}}^{-} \operatorname{Re}[\widetilde{p}_{AB}^{2}(\omega) < a_{1}a_{1+2}\vec{\mu}_{1} + \vec{\mu}_{1+2}\gamma_{1}] \\ & (2.44) \end{split}$$

The fraction \mathcal{A} the coefficient a_1a_{1+2} that is non-zero for this collision sequence is $u_{\lambda R'}^s$, so we have

 $W_{z}^{A}(u)_{1} = 2v_{A}u_{AB}^{2} \operatorname{Re}[\tilde{p}_{AB}^{2}(u) u_{AB} \langle \tilde{\vec{u}}_{1} + \tilde{\vec{u}}_{1+2}^{2} i]$ (2,45) The correlation coefficient $\langle \tilde{\vec{u}}_{1} \cdot \tilde{\vec{u}}_{1+2}^{2} i$ can be obtained from (2.38) using the given collision sequence. We have

$$\langle \vec{\tilde{\mu}}_{1} \cdot \vec{\tilde{\mu}}_{1+2} \rangle_{1} = \int_{0}^{\infty} dc_{1+2} \int_{0}^{\infty} dc_{1+1} \int_{0}^{\infty} dc_{1}A_{A}(c_{1+2})$$

 $\times \Delta_{\mathbf{AB}}(\mathbf{c}_{i+2} | \mathbf{c}_{i+1}) \cdot \mathbf{B}_{\mathbf{A}}(\mathbf{c}_{i+1} | \mathbf{c}_{i}) \cdot \mathbf{P}_{\mathbf{A}}(\mathbf{c}_{i})$ (2.46)

Then we can write (2.45) as

$$W_2^{A}(\omega)_1 = 2 v_A u_{AB}^2 \operatorname{Re}\left[\widetilde{P}_{AB}(\omega)\right] \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} dc_{i+2} \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} dc_{i+1} \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} dc_{i}$$

 $\times A_{A}(c_{i+2}) \cdot \tilde{p}_{AB}(\omega) \cdot u_{AB} A_{AB}(c_{i+2}|c_{i+1}| \cdot \hat{p}_{A}(c_{i+1}|c_{i}) \cdot \hat{p}_{A}(c_{i})$; (2.47) We now consider the second collision sequence for n=2. From (2.19) and (2.21) we obtain *

this collision sequence is $u_{bh}^2 = u_{bh}^2$, so we have

 $\mathbf{w}_{\mathbf{A}}^{\mathbf{A}}(\omega)_{\pm} = 2v_{\mathbf{A}}\mathbf{u}_{\mathbf{A}\mathbf{B}}^{\pm} \operatorname{Re}\left[\tilde{\mathbf{p}}_{\mathbf{A}\mathbf{A}}(\omega) \cdot \tilde{\mathbf{p}}_{\mathbf{A}\mathbf{B}}(\omega) \cdot \mathbf{u}_{\mathbf{A}\mathbf{A}} \cdot \langle \tilde{\vec{\mu}}_{\pm} \cdot \tilde{\vec{\mu}}_{\pm+2} \rangle_{\pm}^{2}\right] \qquad (2.49)$

From (2.38) using the given collision sequence we obtain

$$\begin{split} & \langle \overline{\widetilde{\mu}}_{1} \cdot \langle \overline{\widetilde{\mu}}_{1+2} \rangle_{1}^{*} = \int_{0}^{*} dc_{1+2} \int_{0}^{\infty} dc_{1+1} \int_{0}^{\infty} dc_{1} A_{k}(c_{1+2}) \\ & * \delta_{kk}(c_{1+2}|c_{1+1}| \cdot \delta_{k}(c_{1+1}|c_{1}) F_{k}(c_{1}) \end{split}$$
(2.50

Then we can write (2.49) as

$$W_2^{\mathbf{A}}(\omega)_2 = 2v_{\mathbf{A}}u_{\mathbf{A}\mathbf{B}}^2 \operatorname{Re}[\tilde{p}_{\mathbf{A}\mathbf{B}}(\omega)] \int_0^{\cdot} d\mathbf{c}_{\mathbf{i}+2} \int_0^{\cdot} d\mathbf{c}_{\mathbf{i}+1} \int_0^{\infty} d\mathbf{c}_{\mathbf{i}}.$$

* $A_{\mathbf{A}}^{(\mathbf{c}_{i+2})} \tilde{\mathbf{p}}_{\mathbf{A}\mathbf{A}}^{(\omega)} u_{\mathbf{A}\mathbf{A}}^{(\omega)} A_{\mathbf{A}\mathbf{A}}^{(\mathbf{c}_{i+2}|\mathbf{c}_{i+1})} B_{\mathbf{A}}^{(\mathbf{c}_{i+1}|\mathbf{c}_{i})} P_{\mathbf{A}}^{(\mathbf{c}_{i})}$ (2.51)

Combining (2.47) and (2.51) we obtain for $W_2^A(\omega)$

 $W_{2}^{A}(\omega) = 2v_{A} u_{AB}^{2} \operatorname{Re}[\tilde{p}_{AB}(\omega)] \int_{0}^{\infty} dc_{i+2} \int_{0}^{\infty} dc_{i+1} \int_{0}^{\infty} dc_{i}$

 $\times \ \texttt{A}_{A}(\texttt{c}_{\texttt{i+2}}) \ (\tilde{\texttt{p}}_{AB}(\omega) \ \texttt{u}_{AB} \texttt{\Delta}_{AB}(\texttt{c}_{\texttt{i+2}} | \texttt{c}_{\texttt{i+1}})$

 $+ \tilde{P}_{AA} \left(\omega \right) \ u_{AA} u_{AA} \left(c_{1+2} \right] \left(c_{1+1} \right) \right) \ \tilde{B}_{A} \left(c_{1+1} \left[c_{1} \right] \ P_{A} \left(c_{1} \right) \right)$ (2.52)
Letting

$$\begin{split} & \delta_{\mathbf{A}} (\mathbf{c}_{1}^{'} | \mathbf{c}_{1})^{'} = \tilde{\mathbf{p}}_{\mathbf{A}\mathbf{B}} (\boldsymbol{\omega}) \mathbf{u}_{\mathbf{A}\mathbf{B}} \mathbf{d}_{\mathbf{A}\mathbf{B}} (\mathbf{c}_{1}^{'} | \mathbf{c}_{1}) + \tilde{\mathbf{p}}_{\mathbf{A}\mathbf{A}} (\boldsymbol{\omega}) \mathbf{u}_{\mathbf{A}\mathbf{A}} \mathbf{d}_{\mathbf{A}\mathbf{A}} (\mathbf{c}_{1}^{'} | \mathbf{c}_{1}), \quad (2.53) \end{split}$$
we have

$$\begin{split} \mathbb{W}_{A}^{A}(\omega) &= 2 v_{A} \omega_{AB}^{*} \ln (\tilde{p}_{AB}(\omega)) \int_{0}^{\omega} d\mathbf{c}_{1+2} \int_{0}^{\omega} d\mathbf{c}_{1+1} \int_{0}^{\omega} d\mathbf{c}_{1} \\ &\times \mathcal{H}_{A}(c_{1+2}) \Delta_{A}(c_{1+2} | c_{1+1}) \quad \mathcal{H}_{A}(c_{1+1} | c_{1}) \quad \mathcal{P}_{A}(c_{1}), \end{split} \tag{2.54}$$

It can be seen in general (for arbitrary n)

$$W_{n}^{A}(\omega) = 2v_{A}u_{AB}^{A} \operatorname{Re}\left[\overline{p}_{AB}(\omega)\right] \int_{0}^{\omega} dc_{\frac{1}{2}+n} \cdots \int_{0}^{\omega} dc_{\frac{1}{2}}$$

$$(2155)$$
× $A_{A}(c_{\frac{1}{2}+n})\Delta_{A}(c_{\frac{1}{2}+n}(c_{\frac{1}{2}-1}-1) \cdots \Delta_{A}(c_{\frac{1}{2}-2}|c_{\frac{1}{2}-1}) \cdot B_{A}(c_{\frac{1}{2}-1}|c_{\frac{1}{2}-1}) \cdot B_{A}(c_{\frac{1}{2}-1}|c_{\frac{1}{2}-1})$

Pollowing a collision sequence of a B molecule, one obtains a similar expression for $w^B_{\rm B}(\omega)$,

 $W_{\Pi}^{B}(\omega) = 2v_{B}u_{BA}^{2} \operatorname{Re}[\tilde{p}_{BA}(\omega)]_{0}^{\infty} dc_{i+n} \cdots \int_{0}^{\infty} dc_{i}$

 $**_{\mathbf{B}}(\mathbf{c}_{i+1}) \diamond_{\mathbf{B}}(\mathbf{c}_{i+1} | \mathbf{c}_{i+1}) \dots \diamond_{\mathbf{B}}(\mathbf{c}_{i+2} | \mathbf{c}_{i+1}) & \mathbf{B}_{\mathbf{B}}(\mathbf{c}_{i+1} | \mathbf{c}_{i}) \mathbf{P}_{\mathbf{B}}(\mathbf{c}_{i})$ (2.56)

48

where

 $\delta_{\mathbf{B}}(\mathbf{c}_{1}^{\dagger}|\mathbf{c}_{1}) = \widetilde{\mathbf{p}}_{\mathbf{B}\mathbf{A}}(\omega) \quad u_{\mathbf{B}\mathbf{A}}^{\dagger} \delta_{\mathbf{B}\mathbf{A}}(\mathbf{c}_{1}^{\dagger}|\mathbf{c}_{1}) + \widetilde{\mathbf{p}}_{\mathbf{B}\mathbf{B}}(\omega) u_{\mathbf{B}\mathbf{B}}^{\dagger} \delta_{\mathbf{B}\mathbf{B}}(\mathbf{c}_{1}^{\dagger}|\mathbf{c}_{1})$ (2.57)

Using the above expressions, (2.55) and (2.56), for $w_n^{A}(\omega)$ and $w_n^{B}(\omega)$ in the general expression for W(ω)inter/V, (2.20), we obtain

 $W(\omega)_{\text{inter}}/V = 2n_{A} v_{A} u_{AB}^{2} Re(\tilde{P}_{AB}(\omega) \sum_{n=1}^{\infty} \int_{0}^{\infty} dc_{1+n} \cdots \int_{0}^{\infty} dc_{1}$

 $\times \Lambda_{A}^{i}(c_{i+1}) \Delta_{A}^{i}(c_{i+1}^{i}|c_{i+n-1}^{i}) \cdots \Delta_{A}^{i}(c_{i+2}^{i}|c_{i+1}^{i}) \cdot B_{A}^{i}(c_{i+1}^{i}|c_{i}) \cdot P_{A}^{i}(c_{i}^{i})]$

 $+ 2n_{\tilde{B}}^{'} v_{B}^{u_{\tilde{B}}^{1}} Re[\tilde{p}_{\tilde{B}\tilde{A}}^{'}(u) \sum_{n=1}^{\infty} \int_{0}^{\infty} dc_{i+n}^{'} \cdots \int_{0}^{\infty} dc_{i}^{'}$

The quantity,

 $\int_{0}^{\infty} dc_{\mathbf{i}+\mathbf{n}} \cdots \int_{0}^{\infty} dc_{\mathbf{i}+2} A_{\mathbf{k}}(c_{\mathbf{i}+\mathbf{n}}) A_{\mathbf{k}}(c_{\mathbf{i}+\mathbf{n}} | c_{\mathbf{i}+\mathbf{n}-1}) \cdots A_{\mathbf{k}}(c_{\mathbf{i}+2} | c_{\mathbf{i}+1})$

in the first term in (2.58), is the nth ferm in the Neumann expansion of the Fredholm equation

 $\mathbf{G}_{\mathbf{A}}(\boldsymbol{\omega},\mathbf{G}_{1}) = \mathbf{A}_{\mathbf{A}}(\mathbf{G}_{1}) + \int_{0}^{\infty} \mathbf{d}\mathbf{G}_{1}^{\dagger} \boldsymbol{\delta}_{\mathbf{A}}(\mathbf{G}_{1}^{\dagger}|\mathbf{G}_{1}) \mathbf{G}_{\mathbf{A}}(\boldsymbol{\omega},\mathbf{G}_{1}^{\dagger}) \quad (2.59)$

Similarly, the second term in (2.58) contains terms in the expansion of

$$G_{\mathbf{B}}(\omega, \mathbf{c}_{1}) = A_{\mathbf{B}}(\mathbf{c}_{1}) + \int_{0}^{\infty} d\mathbf{c}_{1}^{\prime} \Delta_{\mathbf{B}}(\mathbf{c}_{1}^{\prime} | \mathbf{c}_{1}) G_{\mathbf{B}}(\omega, \mathbf{c}_{1}^{\prime}) \quad (2.60)$$

Since collisions far removed from an arbitrarily chosen initial collision i are only weakly correlated with it, it is likely the $w_{\mu}^{A}(\omega)$ and $w_{\mu}^{B}(\omega)$ diminish rapidly enough with increasing n for the series' in (2.20) to be convergent. Then the Neumann expansions of (2.59) and (2.60) are convergent, and the sum of the series' in (2.20) can be expressed in terms of $G_{\lambda}(w;c_{1})$ and $G_{\alpha}(w;c_{1})$. Hence we obtain

$$W(\omega)_{inter}/V = 2n_A v_A u_{AB}^2 \tilde{Re}[\tilde{p}_{AB}(\omega)]_0^{\circ} dc_1^{\circ} \int_0^{-dc_1} dc_1$$

$$\begin{array}{c} \times & G_{A}(\omega, \mathbf{c}_{1}^{\prime}) & B_{A}(\mathbf{c}_{1}^{\prime}|\mathbf{c}_{1}) & P_{A}(\mathbf{c}_{1}^{\prime}) \\ \\ + & 2n_{n} v_{n} u_{n}^{2} & \text{Re}[\tilde{p}_{nn}(\omega) & \overset{\frown}{\mathbf{c}} & \text{d}\mathbf{c}_{1}^{\prime} & \overset{\frown}{\mathbf{c}} \end{array}$$

× $G_B(\omega, c_1) B_B(c_1 | c_1) P_B(c_1)$

- $= 2N_{AB} \int_{0}^{\infty} dc_{1}' \int_{0}^{\infty} dc_{1}. \operatorname{Re}\left[\left(\tilde{p}_{AB}(\omega) u_{AB}' G_{A}(\omega, c_{1}') B_{A}'(c_{1}') P_{A}'(c_{1}') \right) \right] \right]$
- + $\tilde{p}_{BA}(\omega) u_{BA}^{} G_{B}(\omega, c_{1}') B_{B}(c_{1}' | c_{1}) P_{B}(c_{1}) \}$ (2.61)

We now return to our expression for the intracollisional autocorrelation function, (2.14),

$$C(t)_{intra}/V = N_{AB} < \vec{\mu}_{i}(t) \cdot \vec{\mu}_{i} (t+t) > i$$

Then the intracollisional spectrum is given by

$$W(\omega)_{intra/V} = \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} [e^{i\omega\tau} c(\tau)_{intra/V}]d\tau$$

$$= N_{AB} \left[\int_{-\infty}^{\infty} < \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} \tilde{\mu}_{1}(t) + \tilde{\mu}_{1}(t-\tau) dt \right]_{1} e^{d\omega\tau} d\tau$$

$$= N_{AB} \langle \hat{u}_{\underline{i}}(\underline{u}) + \hat{v}_{\underline{i}}(-\underline{u}) \rangle_{\underline{i}}$$
(2.62)

50

(2.64)

Using approximation (2:26), this becomes

$$W(\omega)_{intra}/V = N_{AB} \langle \hat{\psi}_i^2 \rangle_i$$
(2.63)

We have .

$$\langle \bar{\mu}_{\underline{i}}^{\dagger} \rangle_{\underline{i}} = \int_{0}^{\pi} dc_{i} P_{\underline{k}}(c_{1}) \int_{0}^{\pi} dc_{i}^{\dagger} K_{\underline{k}}(c_{i}^{\dagger}|c_{1})$$
where

where

$$\mathbf{x}_{A}^{-}(\mathbf{c}_{1}^{+}|\mathbf{c}_{1}^{-}) = \int_{\underline{\mathbf{c}}_{1}}^{\underline{\pi}} d\xi \sin \xi \int_{0}^{\underline{\pi}} dg \, \overline{\mathbf{p}}^{2} \, \mathbf{P}_{AB}^{-}(\dot{\mathbf{g}},\xi_{1},\mathbf{c}_{1}^{+}|\dot{\mathbf{c}}_{1})$$

following TILE 2. We note that another equally valid expression for $\langle \overline{\mu}_1^2 \rangle_1$ is

$$\overline{\mu}_{1}^{2} \geq_{1} = \int_{0}^{\infty} dc_{1} P_{B}(c_{1}) \int_{0}^{\infty} dc_{1}' K_{B}(c_{1}'|c_{1})$$

where

$$K_{\underline{B}}(c_1'|c_1) = \int_{0}^{\pi} d\xi \sin \xi \int_{0}^{\infty} dg \, \overline{\mu}^2 \, P_{\underline{B}\underline{A}}(g,\xi,c_1'|c_1)$$

$$W(\omega)/V = W(\omega)$$
 intra/V + $W(\omega)$ inter/V

and using (2.61), (2.63) and (2.64) we obtain,

$$\begin{split} & \mathsf{W}(\omega)/\mathsf{v} = \ \mathbb{W}_{AB} \int_{0}^{\omega} \mathbf{d}\mathbf{c}_{1}^{'} \int_{0}^{\omega} \mathbf{d}\mathbf{c}_{1}^{'} \left[\mathbf{P}_{A}(\mathbf{c}_{1}) \cdot \mathbf{K}_{A}(\mathbf{c}_{1}^{'}|\mathbf{c}_{1}) \right] \\ & + 2 \cdot \operatorname{Re}[\mathbf{\tilde{p}}_{AB}(\omega) \cdot \mathbf{u}_{AB}\mathbf{c}_{A}(\omega,\mathbf{c}_{1}^{'}) \cdot \mathbf{S}_{A}(\mathbf{c}_{1}^{'}|\mathbf{c}_{1}) \cdot \mathbf{P}_{A}(\mathbf{c}_{1}) \end{split}$$

+ $\tilde{\mathbf{p}}_{\mathbf{B}\mathbf{A}}(\omega) = \hat{\mathbf{u}}_{\mathbf{B}\mathbf{A}}\mathbf{G}_{\mathbf{B}}(\omega, \mathbf{c}_{1}') = \hat{\mathbf{B}}_{\mathbf{B}}(\mathbf{c}_{1}' \mid \mathbf{c}_{1}) = \mathbf{P}_{\mathbf{B}}(\mathbf{c}_{1}')]$ (2.65)

for the reduced line shape function per unit volume. We define

$$w(\omega) = W(\omega) / N_{\overline{AB}} \nabla$$
(2.66)

$$w(\omega) = dc_1' dc_1 \{P_A(c_1)K_A(c_1'|c_1)\}$$

+ 2 $\operatorname{Re}[\widetilde{P}_{AB}(\omega) \ u_{AB}G_{A}(\omega,c_{1}') \ B_{A}(c_{1}'|c_{1}) \ P_{A}(c_{1}))$

$$\tilde{p}_{BA}(\omega) = u_{BA}G_{B}(\omega, c_{1}), B_{B}(c_{1}|c_{1}) P_{B}(c_{1})]$$
 (2.67)

We now have an expression for the reduced line shape function for the collision-induced spectrum of an arbitrary rare-gas mixture. We have made no assumptions about the
relative masses and mole fractions of the two constituents. Thus (2.67) should be generally applicable to the systems considered, within the bounds of the underlying assumptions of the theory, i.e. ohly binary collision contributions to the spectrum are non-negligible, the temporal superposition approximation is valid, etc.

We will now show that intercollisional interference in absorption is always_adestructive for the systems considered.

2.5 Intercollisional Interference at Zero Frequency

To demonstrate that intercollisional interference in absorption by binary mixtures is always destructive we require the relations

 $P_{AB}(g,\xi,c_{1},c_{1}) = P_{AB}(g,\xi,c_{1},c_{1}) = P(\xi,c_{1},c_{1}) = P(\xi,c_{1},c_{1})$ (2.68) BA

where the latter relation holds for all types of collisions, AB, AA, BB, and BB collisions. These relations result from the fact that the collision $(g, (g), \tilde{c}_1, \tilde{c}_1)$ and its inverse, $(g', s_g, \tilde{c}_1, \tilde{c}_1)$, are equally probable, according to the Principle of Detailed Balance (THE 2).

Using (2.68), it is clear that

 $A_{\mathbf{A}}(\mathbf{c}_{1}'|\mathbf{c}_{1}) P_{\mathbf{A}}(\mathbf{c}_{1}) + B_{\mathbf{A}}'(\mathbf{c}_{1}|\mathbf{c}_{1}') P_{\mathbf{A}}(\mathbf{c}_{1}') = 0 \quad , \quad (2.69)$

the left hand side of which can be written

$$d\xi \sin \xi \int_{0} [dg[\overline{\mu}(g,\xi;c_1',c_1) \cos \eta(\xi;c_1',c_1)P_{AB}(g,\xi;c_1',c_1)] g_{AB}(g,\xi;c_1',c_1)$$

+
$$\overline{\mu}(g,\xi,c_1,c_1)$$
 cos n' $(\xi,c_1,c_1) P_{AB}(g,\xi,c_1,c_1)$] (2.70)
BA

We have by hypothesis, $\overline{\mu}(g,\xi,c_1^\prime,c_1)=\overline{\mu}\left(g,\xi,c_1^\prime,c_1^\prime\right)$, and

$$\cos \eta(\xi, c_1', c_1) = c_1 \cdot (c_1' - c_1)/c_1 = -\cos \eta'(\xi, c_1', c_1)$$

results from geometrical considerations. Thus (2.70) is zero. We introduce the kernels

$$\begin{array}{c} A_{\underline{\lambda}}(\mathbf{c}_{1}^{\dagger}|\mathbf{c}_{1})_{0} = P_{\underline{\lambda}}(\mathbf{c}_{1})^{b}P_{\underline{\lambda}}(\mathbf{c}_{1}^{\dagger})^{-\frac{b}{2}} A_{\underline{\lambda}}(\mathbf{c}_{1}^{\dagger}|\mathbf{c}_{1}) \\ B & B \\ B & B \end{array}$$

$$\begin{array}{c} (2.71) \\ (2.7$$

$$\begin{array}{c} \Delta_{\mathbf{A}}(\mathbf{c}_{1}^{\prime}|\mathbf{c}_{1}) = \mathbf{P}_{\mathbf{A}}(\mathbf{c}_{1})^{2} \mathbf{P}_{\mathbf{A}}(\mathbf{c}_{1}^{\prime})^{-2} \Delta_{\mathbf{A}}(\mathbf{c}_{1}^{\prime}|\mathbf{c}_{1}) \\ \mathbf{B} = \mathbf{B} \\ \mathbf{B} = \mathbf{B} \\ \mathbf{B} \end{array}$$

$$(2.72)$$

We obtain

$$\begin{cases} \boldsymbol{S}_{A}(\mathbf{c}_{1}^{\prime}|\mathbf{c}_{1}) = -\boldsymbol{P}_{A}(\mathbf{c}_{1}^{\prime})^{\frac{1}{2}} \boldsymbol{P}_{A}(\mathbf{c}_{1})^{-\frac{1}{2}} \boldsymbol{A}_{A}(\mathbf{c}_{1}|\mathbf{c}_{1}^{\prime})_{0} \\ \boldsymbol{B} \end{cases}$$
(2.73)

by substituting (2,71) into (2.69). Substitution of (2.34)and (2.41), at zero frequency, into (2.72) yields

$$\begin{split} & \Delta_{A}(\mathbf{c}^{\dagger} | \mathbf{c}^{\dagger})_{0} = \mathbb{P}_{A}(\overline{\mathbf{c}}^{\dagger})^{-\frac{1}{2}} \mathbb{P}_{A}(\mathbf{c}^{\dagger})^{-\frac{1}{2}} \\ & \mathbf{B} \\ & \mathbf{B}$$

(2.74)

Then $\Delta_{\mathbf{A}}(\mathbf{c}'_{1}|\mathbf{c}'_{1})_{0}$ are symmetric kernels because $P(\xi, \mathbf{c}'_{1}, \mathbf{c}_{1})$

are symmetric in c, and c, (where $P(\xi,c'_1,c_1)$ refers to the distributions for all possible types of collisions). At should be noted that $A_k(c'_1|c_1)_0$ is not a symmetric kernel.

but can be expressed in terms of two symmetric kernels (TITE 2). We will develop an expression for the intercollisional contribution to the spectral density at zero frequency. We

define the intercollisional density as $v = u_{AB} v_A + u_{BA} v_B$, where

 $\mathcal{P}_{A} = \int_{0}^{\infty} dc_{1} \int_{0}^{\infty} dc_{1}' \int_{0}^{\infty} dc_{1}' \int_{0}^{\infty} dc_{1}' G_{A}(c_{1}^{\dagger}|c_{1}') B_{A}(c_{1}^{\dagger}|c_{1}) P_{A}(c_{1})$ (2.75)

where $G_{A}(c_{1}|c_{1})$ are the solutions of

 $\begin{array}{c} \mathbf{G}_{\mathbf{A}}(\mathbf{c}_{1}^{*} | \mathbf{c}_{1}) \\ \mathbf{B} \\ \mathbf{B} \end{array} = \begin{array}{c} \mathbf{A}_{\mathbf{A}}(\mathbf{c}_{1}^{*} | \mathbf{c}_{1}) + \int_{0}^{\infty} d\mathbf{c}_{1}^{*} [\mathbf{u}_{\mathbf{AB}} | \mathbf{A}_{\mathbf{AB}} (\mathbf{c}_{1}^{*} | \mathbf{c}_{1}) \\ \mathbf{BA} \\ \mathbf{BA} \end{array}$

Expanding (2.76) in Neumann'series' and substituting the results in (2.75), yields two infinite series, the mth terms of which are

$$\begin{split} & \left\{ \begin{array}{l} \left[y_{\underline{\beta}} \right]_{\underline{n}} = \int_{0}^{n} dc_{1} \int_{0}^{n} dc_{1}^{(1)} \int_{0}^{n} dc_{1}^{(1)} \cdots \int_{0}^{n} dc_{1}^{(n+1)} A_{\underline{\beta}} (c_{1}^{n} | c^{(1)}) \\ & \times b_{\underline{\beta}} (c^{(1)} | c^{(1)}) & b_{\underline{\beta}} (c^{(1)} | c^{(1)}) \cdots & b_{\underline{\beta}} (c^{(n)} | c^{(n+1)}) \\ & \times b_{\underline{\beta}} (c^{(n+1)} | c_{1}) & p_{\underline{\beta}} (c_{1}) \end{array} \right. \end{split}$$
Substitution of (2.71), (2.72) and (2.73) into (2.76) gives
$$\left[p_{\underline{\beta}} \right]_{\underline{n}} = \int_{0}^{n} dc_{1} \int_{0}^{n} dc_{1}^{(1)} \left[\frac{a}{b} \right]_{\underline{0}}^{(1)} \cdots \int_{0}^{n} dc_{1}^{(n+1)} p_{\underline{\beta}} (c_{1}^{(1)} | b_{\underline{\beta}} (c_{1}^{(1)} | c_{1}^{(1)}) \\ & \times b_{\underline{\beta}} (c^{(1)} | c^{(1)}) & b_{\underline{\beta}} (c^{(1)} | c^{(1)}) & \cdots & b_{\underline{\beta}} (c^{(n)} | c^{(n+1)}) \\ & \times b_{\underline{\beta}} (c^{(1)} | c^{(1)}) & b_{\underline{\beta}} (c^{(1)} | c^{(1)}) & \cdots & b_{\underline{\beta}} (c^{(n)} | c^{(n+1)}) \\ & \times b_{\underline{\beta}} (c^{(1)} | c^{(1)}) & b_{\underline{\beta}} (c^{(1)} | c^{(1)}) & \cdots & b_{\underline{\beta}} \\ & \text{Since } b_{\underline{\beta}} (c_{1} | c^{(n+1)}) & (2.78) \\ & \text{Since } b_{\underline{\beta}} (c_{1} | c^{(n+1)}) & (2.78) \\ & \text{Since } b_{\underline{\beta}} (c_{1} | c_{1}) & b_{\underline{\beta}} (c^{(1)} | c^{(1)} | b_{\underline{\beta}} (c_{1}) | c^{(1)} \\ & \text{these eigenfunctions do not form a complete set (tricomi 1957). \\ & \text{We then have} \\ & b_{\underline{\beta}} (c_{1} | c_{1}) & b_{\underline{\beta}} = \int_{0}^{n} \left[b_{\underline{\beta}} \right]_{\underline{\beta}} (c_{1}) & (b_{\underline{\beta}} \right]_{\underline{\beta}} (c_{1}) & (2.79) \\ & \text{where } \left[c_{\underline{\beta}} \right]_{\underline{\beta}} \quad \text{are the real eigenvalues corresponding to } \left[b_{\underline{\beta}} \right]_{\underline{\beta}} \right]_{\underline{\beta}} . \end{array}$$

have used a summation sign in (2.79) although the spectrum of $a_{\rm A}$ is probably partly continuous (TIIE 2). as

On substituting (2.79) into (2.78) we obtain,

$$\begin{bmatrix} \mathbf{p}_{\mathbf{A}} \\ -\mathbf{B} \end{bmatrix}_{\mathbf{n}}^{2} = -\sum_{\mathbf{m}}^{2} \cdot \begin{bmatrix} \mathbf{e}_{\mathbf{A}} \\ -\mathbf{B} \end{bmatrix}_{\mathbf{m}}^{\mathbf{n}} \cdot \begin{bmatrix} \mathbf{a}_{\mathbf{A}} \\ -\mathbf{B} \end{bmatrix}_{\mathbf{m}}^{2}$$
(2.80)

where the coefficients $\begin{vmatrix} a_{\frac{1}{2}} \end{vmatrix}$ are given by

$$\begin{bmatrix} a_{\mathbf{A}} \\ B \end{bmatrix}_{\mathbf{m}} = \int_{0}^{\infty} d\mathbf{c}_{1}^{\dagger} \int_{0}^{\infty} d\mathbf{c}_{1} \quad \mathbf{P}_{\mathbf{A}}(\mathbf{c}_{1}^{\dagger})^{\frac{1}{2}} \mathbf{A}_{\mathbf{A}}(\mathbf{c}_{1}^{\dagger} \| \mathbf{c}_{3})_{\mathbf{0}} \begin{pmatrix} \psi_{\mathbf{A}} \\ B \end{pmatrix}_{\mathbf{m}} (\mathbf{c}_{1}) \quad (2.81)$$

Hence

$$p = u_{AB} \int_{n=0}^{\infty} p_{An} + u_{BA} \int_{n=0}^{\infty} p_{Bn}$$

$$= -u_{ab} \int a_{ab}^{2} / (1-\varepsilon_{ab}) - u_{ab} \int a_{ab}^{2} / (1-\varepsilon_{ab})$$
(2.82)

The terms $\begin{bmatrix} p \\ m \end{bmatrix}$ are the contributions of the (n+1)th

collisions after the arbitrarily chosen initial collisions, to the intercollisional interference, for A and B terms respectively. Since later collisions are less correlated with the initial collision than earlier ones. $\left| p_{\mathbf{k}} \right| + 0$ as $\mathbf{n} + \mathbf{w}$. By

(2.80), this implies that if $\begin{bmatrix} a \\ B \end{bmatrix}_{m}$ are non-zero, then $| \begin{bmatrix} \epsilon_{A} \\ B \end{bmatrix}_{m} | < 1$.

56

Hence $\left(a_{A}\right)_{m}^{2}/(1-\left(\epsilon_{A}\right)_{m})>0$ for all m, and then, from (2.82), $p \leq 0$.

In other words, at zero frequency, the intercollisional contribution to the spectral density is always negative.

However, unlike TITE 2, the extension of the property to non-zero frequencies is not easy. This is because the quantities $a_{\lambda}(c_{\lambda}^{-1}|c_{\lambda})$ are frequency dependent, and this

dependence cannot be split out as a multiplying factor in the Neumann expansions of the Fredholm equations (2.76).

We recall the general equation for the line shape function of the collision-induced absorption spectrum, w(u)/ (2.67). To evaluate the quantities in (2.67) involving collision probability distributions is difficult, even for simple physical models (TIE 2). The calculations of $P_{AB}(t, \tilde{C}_{t}^{\dagger}|\tilde{C}_{t})$ and $\delta_{AB}(\tilde{C}_{t}^{\dagger}|\tilde{C}_{t})$ for a rigid-sphere gas are performed in section 4 of TIE 2. Because of the difficult evaluation of collision probability distributions, we will not attempt to use our expression in its general form in the study of w(w). Instead, we look for a simplification that will reduce (2.67) to a form where the degendence of w(w) on mole fraction can be more easily obtained

2.6 A Simplified Expression for the Line-Shape Function

A simplified expression for the line shape function can be obtained by approximating $\delta(c, |c,)$ by the mean persistenceof-velocity ratio, as was first considered in TILE 2. Consider the Fredholm equations

$$G_{A}(\omega, c_{1}) = A_{A}(c_{1}) + \int_{0} dc_{1}^{*} \Delta_{A}(c_{1}'|c_{1}) G_{A}(\omega, c_{1}),$$
 (2.83)

the solutions of which occur in (2.67). To obtain the solutions to these equations, where $\Delta_{a}(c_{1}^{\dagger}|c_{1})$ have general velocity

dependences, we use a Neumann expansion of each of the two terms and obtain a pair of infinite series. However, if the functional dependence of $s_{a}(c)$ on velocity is replaced by

some average value, A; ; .

$$\begin{array}{c} \boldsymbol{\Delta}_{\underline{A}} \left(\boldsymbol{c}_{1}^{\prime} \right| \boldsymbol{c}_{1} \right) \approx \tilde{\boldsymbol{\Delta}}_{\underline{A}} \delta \left(\boldsymbol{c}_{1}^{\prime} - \boldsymbol{c}_{1} \right) \\ \boldsymbol{B} \end{array} \tag{2.84}$$

where & 18 the Dirac delta function, the solutions to the Fredholm equations (2.83) can be readily expressed in closed: form,

$$\begin{array}{c} \mathbf{G}_{\mathbf{A}}(\omega, \mathbf{c}_{1}) = \mathbf{A}_{\mathbf{A}}(\mathbf{c}_{1}) / (1 - \widetilde{\boldsymbol{\Delta}}_{\mathbf{A}}(\omega)) \\ \mathbf{B} \end{array}$$

$$\begin{array}{c} \mathbf{B} \\ \mathbf{B} \end{array}$$

$$\begin{array}{c} \mathbf{B} \\ \mathbf{B} \end{array}$$

$$\begin{array}{c} \mathbf{C}_{\mathbf{A}}(\omega, \mathbf{c}_{1}) \\ \mathbf{C}_{\mathbf{A}}(\omega, \mathbf{c}_{1}) \\ \mathbf{C}_{\mathbf{A}}(\omega, \mathbf{c}_{1}) \end{array}$$

$$\begin{array}{c} \mathbf{C}_{\mathbf{A}}(\omega, \mathbf{c}_{1}) \\ \mathbf{C}_{\mathbf{A}}(\omega, \mathbf{c}_{1}) \\ \mathbf{C}_{\mathbf{A}}(\omega, \mathbf{c}_{1}) \\ \mathbf{C}_{\mathbf{A}}(\omega, \mathbf{c}_{1}) \end{array}$$

$$\begin{array}{c} \mathbf{C}_{\mathbf{A}}(\omega, \mathbf{c}_{1}) \\ \mathbf{C}_{\mathbf{A}}(\omega, \mathbf{C}_{\mathbf{A}}(\omega, \mathbf{c}_{1}) \\ \mathbf{C}_{\mathbf{A$$

where.

$$\tilde{A}_{A}(\omega) = \tilde{p}_{AB}(\omega) u_{AB} \tilde{A}_{AB} + \tilde{p}_{AA}(\omega) u_{AA} \tilde{A}_{AA}$$
. (2.86)
B BA BA BB BB BB

The quantities $\tilde{\Delta}_{AB}$ and $\tilde{\Delta}_{AA}$ in (2.86) are of course the

averages occuring in relations similar to (2.84);

A(c, |c,) = A & (c, -c,)

Where (2.87) refers to all possible types of collisions; AB, AA; BB, and BA collisions.

(2.87)

If we are dealing with a rigid sphere forents gas $(n_A < n_B, n_A < m_B)$, (2.87) for AB collisions, is exact if $\tilde{\Delta}_{AB}$, is taken as speed dependent (THE 2). In addition, this relation is also valid if $n_A > m_B$ (THE 2). Thus it appears likely that (2.87) for AB collisions, is valid for arbitrary values of m_A / m_B . Given this, it is reasonable to assume that (2.87) is a good approximation for all types of collisions, A, AA, BB, and BA collisions; for arbitrary mass ratios.

The quantities \hat{a} in (2.87) are some average value of $\delta(c_i^{\dagger}|c_1)$, and are a measure of the persistence of the velocity of a molecule in a collision. \hat{c}_{AB}^{\dagger} is a measure of persistence \hat{c}_{AB}

of the velocity of a molecule $\frac{A}{B}$ in a collision with a $\frac{B}{A}$ molecule, similarly for L_{AA}). If we choose our mean value of $\frac{BB}{BB}$

 $\Delta_{AB}(c_1 | c_1)$ to be

 $\hat{\delta}_{\mathbf{AB}} = \int_{0}^{0} d\mathbf{c}_{1}^{\prime} \int_{0}^{0} d\mathbf{c}_{1} (\mathbf{c}_{1}^{\prime}/\mathbf{c}_{1}) \ \delta_{\mathbf{AB}} (\mathbf{c}_{1}^{\prime}/\mathbf{c}_{1}) \ \mathbf{P}_{\mathbf{A}} (\mathbf{c}_{1}) \ , \qquad (2.88)$

we find that \hat{A}_{AB} is identical to the mean persistence-ofvelocity ratio θ_{AB} defined for rigid spheres by Chapman and Cowling (1964). They have derived this ratio for rigid spheres with arbitrary values of n_A/m_B and obtained

$$\tilde{\Delta}_{AB} = M_A^2 / 2 + (M_A^2 / 2M_B^2) \ln[(M_B^3 + 1)/M_A^3]$$
 (2.89)

where $M_A = m_A/m_0$ and $M_B = m_B/m_0$ with $m_0 = m_A + m_B$. From this expression we can see that $\hat{\Delta}_{AB}$ is solely dependent on the relative masses of the two species, and that it varies from 0 for $\frac{M_A}{M} + 0$, to 1 for $\frac{M_A}{M_B} + \pi$, and is approximately 0.406 $^{-5}$ for $M_A = M_A$.

If \tilde{b}_{AA} , \tilde{b}_{BB} and \tilde{b}_{BA} are defined in expressions similar to that of δ_{AB} , that is (2.88), we find that these mean values are identical to corresponding mean persistenceof-velocity ratio. These ratios are defined of course in relations similar to (2.89):

 $\bar{\lambda}_{\chi\chi} = M_{\chi}/2 + (M_{\chi}^2/2M_{\chi}^2) \ln[(M_{\chi}^2 + 1)/M_{\chi}^2]$ (2.90) where I = A or B, and J = A or B. Clearly $\bar{\lambda}_{AA}$ and $\bar{\lambda}_{BB}$ are independent of the mass ratio, and have a common value of approximately 0.406.

60

We return to the solutions of the Fredholm equations, (2.85), obtained by using the simplification (2.84),

$$G_{\underline{A}}(\omega, c_1) = A_{\underline{A}}(c_1) / (1 - \tilde{\Delta}_{\underline{A}}(\omega))$$

Substituting these solutions into our general expression for the line shape function, (2.67), we obtain

$$w(\omega) = C + 2 \operatorname{Re}[u_{AB} \tilde{p}_{AB}(\omega), \alpha_A/(1 - \tilde{\Delta}_A(\omega))]$$

+ $u_{BA} \tilde{p}_{BA}(\omega) \alpha_{B} / (1 - \tilde{\Delta}_{B}(\omega))$] (2.91)

where we have used the following definitions;

$$C = \int_{0}^{\infty} dc_1 P_{\mathbf{A}}(c_1) \int_{0}^{\infty} dc'_1 K_{\mathbf{A}}(c'_1|c_1)$$
(2.92)

and ...

$$\mathbf{a}_{\mathbf{A}} = \int_{0}^{\infty} d\mathbf{c}_{1} \mathbf{P}_{\mathbf{A}}(\mathbf{c}_{1}) \int_{0}^{\infty} d\mathbf{c}_{1}^{\prime} \mathbf{A}_{\mathbf{A}}(\mathbf{c}_{1}^{\prime}) \mathbf{B}_{\mathbf{A}}(\mathbf{c}_{1}^{\prime}) \mathbf{c}_{1}$$
(2.93)

C is the intracollisional part of the spectrum, and a_A and a_B are due to intercollisional interference.

At zero frequency we have

$$w(0) = C + 2 u_{AB} \alpha_{A} / (1 - \tilde{\Delta}_{A}(0))$$

+ 2 u_{AB} \alpha / (1 - \tilde{\Delta}_{A}(0))

(2.94)

where

$$\tilde{\Delta}_{A}^{(0)} = u_{AB}^{} \Delta_{AB}^{} + u_{AA}^{} \tilde{\Delta}_{AA}^{}$$

B BA BA BB BB
(2.95)

62

We now introduce the quantities z = $n_{\rm A}^{}/n_{\rm B}^{}$ and $r_{\rm A}^{}$ = $s_{\rm A}^{}/s_{\rm AB}^{}$

and write the relative collision frequencies in terms of these variables to obtain

$$u_{AA} = r_A z/(1 + r_A z)$$
; $u_{AB} = 1/(1 + r_A z)$

 $u_{BB} = (1/z)/(1 + r_B/z)$; $u_{BA} = 1/(1 + r_B/z)$ (2.96)

The limiting cases (1) z + 0 and (2) z + - are now considered.In the first case, the relative collision frequencies, to thefirst order in z, are

$$u_{AA} \sim 0(z)$$
, $u_{BA} \sim 0(z)$, $u_{AB} \sim 1 - 0(z)$, $u_{DB} \sim 1 - 0(z)$. (2.97)

In the second case, the relative collision frequencies, to the first order in 1/z, are $\gamma_{\rm C}$

$$u_{AA}^{-1-0}(1/z)$$
, $u_{BA}^{-1-0}(1/z)$, $u_{AB}^{-0}(1/z)$, $u_{BB}^{-0}(1/z)$. (2.98)

We consider limiting case (1) first. Substituting (2.97) into (2.94), we obtain

$$(0) -C + 2[1-0(z)] \alpha_{A} / \{1-[1-0(z)] \Delta_{AB}$$

-[0(z)] [AA]

+ 2[0(z)] a_p/{1-[0(z)] - A_{pa}

-[1-0(z)] Å_{BB}) (2.99)

for the line shape function at zero frequency, to the first order in z. Considering only the terms of order unity, we obtain

$$w(0) = C + 2 \alpha_{\rm A} / (1 - \tilde{\Delta}_{\rm AB}).$$
 (2.100)

The depth of the intercollisional dip relative to the intracollisional spectrum is usually written as $1-\gamma$ (Van Kranendonk 1968). Thus, for the first limiting case, we have

$$w(0) \equiv C(1-\gamma_{a}) = C + 2\alpha_{a}/(1-\Delta_{aB})$$

yielding

 $2\alpha_{A} = -C(1-\tilde{\Delta}_{AB})\gamma_{A}$

(2.101)

Similarly in the second limiting case we obtain

 $2\alpha_{B} = -C(1-\tilde{\Delta}_{BA})\gamma_{B}$

(2.102)

Substituting (2.101) and (2.102) into (2.91) yields

 $w(\omega) = C\{1-u_{AB}(1-\tilde{\Delta}_{AB}^{(b)}), \gamma_{A} \operatorname{Re}[\tilde{p}_{AB}(\omega)/(1-\tilde{\Delta}_{A}(\omega))]$

 $-u_{BA}(1-\tilde{\Delta}_{BA}) \gamma_{B} \operatorname{Re}[\tilde{p}_{BA}(\omega)/(1-\tilde{\Delta}_{B}(\omega))] \}$ (2.103)

which is our simplified expression for the line shape function.

2:7 Calculations and Results

The dependence of the relative line shape function on frequency and mole fraction can now be easily obtained using (2:103). In particular, we wish to studywthe variation of the halfwidth of the line shape function with the mole fraction of one of the constituents. This dependence cannot be readily calculated analytically and we resort to computer calculations based on the Newton-Raphson algorithm. The basic procedures followed in these calculations will now be outlined along with the principal results.

Since it is primarily our aim to study dependence. on mole fraction, we find it convenient to treat those terms independent of number density as constants. We set the intercollisional term C equal to unity, so that if there are no intercollisional effects present, $w(\omega)=1$. Likevise, it is reasonable to assign the quantities γ_A and γ_B value 1. Our expression for the line shape function is now reduced to

 $\dot{\mathbf{w}}(\omega) = 1 - u_{\mathbf{a}\mathbf{B}} (1 - \tilde{\Delta}_{\mathbf{a}\mathbf{B}}) \operatorname{Re}[\tilde{\mathbf{p}}_{\mathbf{a}\mathbf{B}}(\omega) / (1 - \tilde{\Delta}_{\mathbf{a}}(\omega))]$

$u_{BA}(1 - \tilde{\Delta}_{BA}) \operatorname{Re}[\tilde{p}_{BA}(\omega)/(1 - \tilde{\Delta}_{B}(\omega))]$

We recall that $\vec{P}_{AB}(\omega)$ are related to the probability BA distributions for collision intervals x_1 for $\frac{AB}{BA}$ collisions,

PAB (xi), by

 $\tilde{\mathbf{p}}_{\substack{AB\\ na}}(\omega) = \int_{0}^{\infty} e^{-i\omega x_{\mathbf{i}}} p_{\substack{AB\\ na}}(x_{\mathbf{i}}) dx_{\mathbf{i}}$

Following TIIE 2, we assume that the intervals x_i are independently distributed as

 $p_{AB}(x_{i}) = v_{AB} e^{-bA}$

(2.105)

where v_{AB} are the average collision frequencies for $^{AB}_{BA}$

collisions. We have of course, similar expressions for $p_{AA}(x_1)$ BB that appear in $\bar{A}_{A}(\omega)$ and $\bar{A}_{B}(\omega)$, through $\bar{p}_{AA}(\omega)$. Equation

(2:105) is valid if the collision frequencies are velocityindependent and the assumption of molecular chaos holds. (THE 2). The use of this approximation is discussed in detail in THE 2, where it is pointed out that (2.105) is unlikely to introduce significant errors.

(2.104)

, Substituting (2.105) into our expression for $\hat{p}_{AB}(\omega)$. BA

 $\mathcal{B}_{AB}(\omega) = v_{AB} / (v_{AB} + i\omega)$ BA BA (2.106)

where $v_{AB} = N_{AB}/n_{A}$, with a similar expression for $\tilde{p}_{AA}(\omega)$. BA B

We now have all of the variables appearing in (2.104) in terms of the defining parameters of rigid-sphere molecules, that is, rigid-sphere diameter o, and mass m.

We will write (2.104) in terms of the collision probabilities u, mean persistance-of-velocities û, average collisional frequencies v, and collision frequencies per unit volume N, where these quantities will be denoted with the appropriate subscripts. The definitions of these variables in terms of a and m are then given; and values; assigned to these parameters and the constants characterizing the gas mixtures.

 $w(\omega) = 1 - u_{AB}(1 - \tilde{\Delta}_{AB}) \operatorname{Re}\left[\left(v_{AB}/(v_{AB} + i\omega)\right)\right]$

 $\times [1 - [v_{AB}] (v_{AB} + i\omega)] u_{AB} \tilde{\Delta}_{AB} - [v_{AA}] (v_{AA} + i\omega)] u_{AA} \tilde{\Delta}_{AA}]^{-1} \}$

 $\dot{u}_{BA}(1-\tilde{\Delta}_{BA}) \cdot Re[[v_{BA}/(v_{BA}+i\omega)]]$

Reading and the state of the st . 67 $\times [1-[v_{BA}/(v_{BA}+i\omega)]u_{BA}\tilde{\lambda}_{BA}-[v_{BB}/(v_{BB}+i\omega)]u_{BB}\tilde{\lambda}_{BB}]^{-1}] \quad (2.107)$ where $\begin{array}{l} \mathbf{u}_{\mathbf{A}\mathbf{B}} = N_{\mathbf{A}\mathbf{B}} / (N_{\mathbf{A}\mathbf{A}} + N_{\mathbf{A}\mathbf{B}}),\\ \mathbf{B}\mathbf{A} \quad \mathbf{B}\mathbf{A} \quad \mathbf{B}\mathbf{B} \quad \mathbf{B}\mathbf{B} \\ \end{array}$ $u_{AA} = N_{AA} / (N_{AA} + N_{AB}),$ BB BB BA BB $\tilde{\Delta}_{AA} = 0.406$, BB and $N_{AB} = n_A n_B S_{AB}$ BA $N_{AA} = n_A S_A$ BB B B with $S_{AB} = 2 \frac{\pi \sigma^2}{AB} \sqrt{\frac{2kTm_o}{\pi m_A m_B}}$ and $S_{A} = 4 \pi \sigma_{A}^{2} / kT/\pi m_{A}$ B B B B

2017年,原则是你得到起来还…

'密

where $m_0 = m_A^2 + m_B^2$ and we have used $\sum_{AB} = \pi \sigma_{AB}^2 = \pi (\sigma_A + \sigma_B^2)^2 / 4$.

and $\tilde{\Sigma}_{AA} = \pi \sigma_A^2$.

 $k \equiv$ Boltzmann's constant = 1.38 x 10⁻¹⁶ ergs/degree. T \equiv room temperature = 300 K.

We will study the line happes for six different mixtures; He-Ne, He-Xr, He-Xe, Ne-Ar, Ar-Xe, and Ne-Xe. The numerical values of various parameters are given below.

TABLE 2.1. Values of the Rigid-Sphere Parameters for

He, Ne, Ar, and Xe.

molecule	σ _A *	Ĩaa	^m A	s _A
	(Å)	(Ų)	(amu)	.∕(Ųcm∕sec)
He	1.80	10.2	4.003	1.82 × 10 ⁶
Ne	2,80	24.6	20.183	1.95 × 10 ⁶
Ar Xe	3.40 4.00	36.3 50.3	39.944 131.30	2.05 × 10 ⁷ 1.56 × 10 ⁶

*The values of o_A are taken from Hirschfelder, Curtiss and Bird, 11967), and Chapman and Cowling (1970).

		5	a start in the	S	· · · ·
mixture A-B	σ _{AB} (Å)	Σ _{ΑΒ} : (Ų)	S _{AB} (Ųcm/sec)	δ̃ _{AB}	Δ _{ΒΑ}
He-Ne	2.30	16.6	2.29 × 10 ⁶	.106	.787
He-Ar	2.60	21.2 .	2.80 × 10 ⁶	.054	.881
He-Xe	2.90	26.4	3.38 × 10 ⁶	.016	.961
Ne-Ar	3.10	30.2	2.08 × 10	.247	. 584
Ar-Xe	3.70	40.3	1.96 × 106	.159	.704
Ne-Xe	3.40	36.3	2.19 × 10 ⁶	.082	: 827
3.62	1. 200 1	12 1 2 2	the second second		15 34 1 16

BLE 2.2. Values of the Rigid-Sphere Parameters for He-Ne,

He-Ar, He-Xe, Ne-Ar, Ar-Xe, and Ne-Xe Mixtures.

A typical plot of the line shape as a function of frequency produced from (2.107) is shown in Figure 2.5. This plot was obtained for the He Ne mixture at a density of 100 amagat, and mole fraction of He, x_{a} , equal 50.0.1. It should be noted that the line shape function is not a Lorentzian. In particular, there is a small feature, about 1% of the intracollisional spectrum at 2070 frequency, appearing at about 0.5 cm⁻¹. This structure, however, arises when absorption is very high and is not likely to be observed experimentally. If we plot the line shape as a function of frequency for the He-Ne mixture with the same density but for mole fraction, x_{a} equal to 0.01, we obtain a Lorentzian -like curve with a



こと、アイトー という パート とうちょうがんない はないのがある

halfwidth of $v_{AB}(1-\delta_{AB})$ in agreement with the THE 2 result for infinite dilution (see Figure 2.6).

The second second

To study how the line shape varies with relative number density, it is useful to obtain the dependence of the halfwidth on the mole fraction of one of the constituents. The halfwidth, w_{i} , at a given mole fraction is the frequency for which the line shape has value $(W(\omega)_{max} - W(\omega)_{min})^{/2}$, or (1-W(0))/2. This halfwidth is obtained using a simple iterative Newton-Raphson procedure, the outline of which is given below.

Initially, the trial halfwidth (usually obtained from a plot of W(w) vs a at the given mole fraction), and the frequency interval for which the derivative of the line shape is to be calculated, which we denote by v_{trial} and h_{w} respectively, are input. The frequency interval h_{w} being typically of the order of $v_{trial}/200$. A brief description of the major calculations in the program are as follows:

1). The value of the line shape function for the given mole fraction at $\omega=\omega_k,~W(\omega_k)=-(1-W(O))/2$ is computed.

2) The difference between $W(w_{trial})$ and $W(w_{t})$ is calculated and we denote it by 6W.

3) If $\Delta W < 0.0001, ~\omega_{\rm trial}$ is assigned as the half-width $\omega_{\rm L}$

4) If AW > 0.0001, a new trial halfwidth is defined



(1) = $\omega_{\text{trial}} + \Delta \omega / W$

where

 $W' = S[W(\omega_{trial} + \Delta \omega) - W(\omega_{trial})]/\Delta \omega.$ 5) return to step (2).

This process is repeated until condition (3) is satisfied or wintl the number of iterations exceeds 20. To obtain the dependence of ω_{h} on mole fraction, steps (1) to (5) are executed inside an iterative loop for the mole fraction of the lighter molecule, denoted x_{h} , where x_{h} is incremented by step sizes δx_{h} from 0 to 1. The increment δx_{h} is input along with the density of the mixture at the start of the program. The value of the trial halfwidth for each value of the mole fraction is assigned the value of previously calculated ω_{h} . As can be seen from Figure 2.5 and 2.6, $\Psi(\alpha)$, is a well behaved function, and the number of iterations required to obtain a suitable ω_{h} is typically small, usually 2 for 3.

The plots obtained by the above program are shown in Figures 2.7 to 2.10, for He-Ne. He-Ar, He-Xe and Ne-Ar mixtures respectively. The values of the halfwidths for x_h^{-1} and x_h^{-1} are in agreement with the result $w_h^{-1} v_h^{-1} (1-\lambda_{ph}) = \frac{1}{ph}$ obtained in TIE.2 for infinite dilution. The density is

73





STAN SALES







100 amagat for all of the plots shown.

One of the major features of the plots is that the halfwidth does not go to its minimum value as x_A goes to 1. This is particularly obvious for the He-Me mixture and especially so for the Ne-Ar mixture. We note that the latter mixture 1a differentiated from the other mixtures mainly in that the masses of the two constituents are fairly close. The location of this minimum halfwidth was unexpected

Let us consider a binary gas mixture with constituents A and B. As before, A denotes the less massive of the two species, thus $\tilde{\Delta}_{nB} < \tilde{\Delta}_{BA}$. Assume x_h is very close to 1, and the gas can be treated as a single B molecule in 'a sea of light A molecules. We now increase the concentration of B molecules, and/or decrease that of A, until the gas can be treated as a single A molecule moving in a sea of heavier B molecules. Initially it was thought that the halfwidth Would increase from its value at $x_h = 1$, $nS_{hR}(1-\tilde{\Delta}_{RR})$ to its value at $x_{a} \approx 0$, $nS_{aB}(1-\tilde{\Delta}_{aB})$. This is not the case as can be seen from Figures 2.7 to 2.10. The reason why the interference is maximal at $x_n \approx 0$ is obvious. Any increase in the concentration of A molecules will result in AA collisions. which tend to spoil the negative correlation in the dipoleinducing collisions, that is AB collisions. Correspondingly, it seemed likely that for $x_1 = 1$, the interference would be minimal. However, upon closer examination of the behaviour of the halfwidth for $x_A \approx 1$, the effect of an increase in the concentration of B molecules is not immediately obvious.

security is a state of the second state of the

2.8 Comparison with Experiment; Conclusions

Wong (1978) has obtained an expression for the lipe shape function of absorption by arbitrary binary rare-gas mixtures. In our motation, his result, (6.4.2), can be 3.* expressed as

$$W(\omega) = C + \frac{2u_{AB}\alpha_{A}}{1+(\omega/v_{AB})^{2}} + \frac{2u_{BA}\alpha_{B}}{1+(\omega/v_{BA})^{2}}$$

In the above expression, the quantities a_A and a_B are treated as adjustable forometers. The values assigned to these quantities are obtained by a curve-fitting procedure. This vas done for Ne-Xe and Ar-Xe mixtures for various concentration ratios at 2.3 cm⁻¹ and 4.5 cm⁻¹. Not unexpectedly, the agreement between these fitted curves and the experimental data is good (see Figures 2.11-2.13). However, at lower frequencies these fitted parameters yield hegative values for the line shape function and thus, cannot be regarded as physically realistic or meaningful.

As mentioned previously in Section 2.6, $1-\gamma_A^{-1}-\gamma_B^{-0}$, and as a result the quantities $\alpha_A^{-/2}$ and $\alpha_B^{-/2}$ can be calculated (see (2.101) and (2.102)). We obtain

(2.108)

 $\alpha_{\underline{\mathbf{A}}}/C = -(1-\widetilde{\Delta}_{\underline{\mathbf{A}}\underline{\mathbf{B}}})/2$







For any realistic three-dimensional system \tilde{a}_{AB} are nonmetative and so

$$|\alpha_{A} C| \leq 3$$

(2.109)

In the following table, we present our values of $a_{\rm A}/C$ calculated, with (2.108) and those of Wong.

Table 2.3. Analytical and Fitted Values of $\alpha_{\rm A}^{\prime}/C$ for B

	Ne	-Xe	Ar-Xe		
	α _A ∕c	α _B ∕C	α _A /C	α _B /C	
Present Work	45	08	42	15	
Wong	850.	025	- 675	115	

The values bear only a qualitative similarity. It is clear that Wong's values for $a_{\rm A}/C$ violate the inequality (2.109) necessary for the non-negativity of the line shape function.

The curves calculated by our expression for intercollisional line shape, (2.103), are shown in Figures 2.11 to 2.13. These curves were generated by using line shape values computed by the program described in section 2.7, multiplied by the value of the intracollisional spectrum at low frequency, obtained by Wong and multiplied by the sator a mig. It should be noted that the differences in the fitted curves , and curs are not due to differences in the values of physical parameters, i.e. the intracollisional term or rigid-sphery diameters, but rather to the different form of the intercollisional line shape function.

We conclude that our theory gives the correct qualitative behaviour of the intercollisional dip. This is demonstrated in Figures 2.11 to 2.13, where up to 5,000 Am our curves generally fit the experimental data as well as the fitted curves. However, it is clear that the correlations that we have neglected, i.e. the fourth term in (2.6), are significant. They give rise to the serious differences Netween the theory and experiment, particularly at higher densities. In addition, w(0) is markedly greater than zero for $0x_{A}^{-1}$ deven when our theory forces w(0) = 0 for $x_{A} = 0$ and x_{A}^{-1} . This is also a problem in collision-induced light scattering, but is not so prevalent since the correlations are weaker. The contribution to the total intercollisional interference from immediately successive collisions is about 654 for light scattering (TIE 3).

The approach of THE 1-5 and the present work requires further elaboration to account for the above correlations. Extensions of the applicability of the theory to higher densities requires the inclusion of ternary and higherorder collision processes. In the following chapter we shall extend the theory developed above to mixtures, not merely of arbitrary contentration ratio but of arbitrary numbers of components.

85

THEORY OF INTERCOLLISIONAL INTERPERENCE IN TRANSLATIONAL ABSORPTION BY GAS MIXTURES OF ARBITRARY COMPOSITION

CHAPTER

3.1 Introduction

This chapter deals with intercollisional interforence in absorption by gas mixtures consisting of an arbitrary number of species. We make no assumptions about the relative masses and number densities of the species. Nowever, as in Chapter 2 the assumption that $\tau_{\rm C} > \tau_{\rm d}$ will be made so that only low densities will be considered. A temporal superposition for the dipole moments induced in isolated binary collisions can then be used to represent the induced dipole moment in a particular molecule. In addition, we assume that unlike molecules interact through pairwise additive central forces, and that the induced dipole moments are pairwise additive and instantaneously parallel to these forces, as in Chapter 2. Our treatment begins again with the expression for the total induced dipole moment in the gas at time t.

3.2 General Theory

Consider a gas in a volume V. consisting of species a, g..., s with the numbers of molecules of each species denoted by N_a , N_{g} ..., N_{a} respectively. A molecule of species γ will be denoted a_{a} . The total induced dipole moment in the gas can be written

$$\vec{\tilde{M}}(t) = \partial_{\tilde{t}} (\sum_{a_{\alpha}=1}^{N_{\alpha}} \sum_{b=1}^{N-N_{\alpha}} (a_{\alpha}b) (t) + \sum_{a_{\beta}=1}^{N_{\beta}} \sum_{b=1}^{N-N_{\beta}} (t) + \dots$$

(3.1)

where $\frac{1}{2} \begin{pmatrix} a_g b \end{pmatrix}$ (t) is the dipole moment induced by the intermolecular interaction between molecules a_g and b. Since molecules of the same species do not induce dipoles in each other, i.e.

 $\dot{\mu}^{(a_{\varepsilon}a_{\varepsilon}^{a})}(t) = 0;$

 $+\sum_{a_{\omega}=1}^{N_{\omega}}\sum_{b}^{N-N_{\omega}} (a_{\omega}^{*}b) (\tilde{t})$

we can write the total induced dipole moment as

$$\vec{M}(t) = \frac{1}{2} \sum_{b=1}^{N} (\sum_{a_{\alpha}=1}^{N_{\alpha}} \mu^{(a_{\alpha}b)}(t) + \dots + \sum_{a_{\alpha}=1}^{N_{\alpha}} \mu^{(a_{\alpha}b)}(t))$$

$$= \frac{1}{2} \sum_{\varepsilon=\alpha}^{\infty} \sum_{b} \sum_{\varepsilon} \frac{1}{\mu} \sum_{\varepsilon=\alpha}^{\alpha} (t)$$

 $= \frac{1}{2} \sum_{a,b} \frac{1}{b} \frac{a}{b} (ab) (t) \qquad (3.2)$

This expression corresponds to (2.4) but is written in a different form so that summation extends over all the

molecules in the gas. From our expression for the dipole
moment autocorrelation function, (2.3) ; we have

$$C(\tau) = k < \sum_{a,a} \sum_{b,b} \psi^{(ab)}(t) + \psi^{(a'b')}(t + \tau) > (3.3)$$

88

(3.6)

This expression will be handled in the same sanner as (2.5). That is, we can write (3,3) as

$$t_{i} < 2 \sum_{a,b,b} \sum_{\mu,\mu} t^{(ab)}(t) \cdot t^{(ab')}(t + \tau)$$

+ 2 \sum_{b} $\sum_{a,a}$ $\mu^{+(ab)}(t) \cdot \mu^{(a'b)}(t + \tau)$

$$= 2 \sum_{h=1}^{\infty} \sum_{h=1}^{+} \frac{(ab)}{\mu} (t) \cdot \frac{1}{\mu} (ab) (t + \tau)$$

+ $\sum_{a,a'}$ $\sum_{b,b'}$ $\mu^{(ab)}(t) \cdot \mu^{(a'b')}(t + \tau) > (3.4)$ $a \neq a', b' b \neq b', a'$

where we have used the fact that

$$\mu^{(a_{\varepsilon}b_{\gamma})}(t) = \mu^{(b_{\gamma}a_{\varepsilon})}(t) \quad . \tag{3.5}$$

Again, as in Chapter 2, the last term which expresses correlations between collisions in which no molecule is common, will be neglected. Let the dipole moment induced by a molecule a of species in all other molecules by

 $\begin{array}{c} \downarrow^{\left(a_{\gamma}\right)} \\ \mu \end{array} (t) = \prod_{i} \mu^{\left(a_{\gamma}b\right)} (t) \ . \end{array}$

89
Writing (3.4) as

$$c(\tau) = \frac{1}{2} \leq \sum_{e} \int_{a_{e}} \int_{b} \int_{b} \int_{a}^{(a_{e},b)} (t) \int_{a}^{b} \int_{a}^{(a_{e},b')} (t+\tau) \\
+ \int_{b} \int_{c} \int_{a_{e}} \int_{a_{e}} \int_{a}^{(a_{e},b')} (t) + \int_{a}^{(a_{e},b')} (t+\tau) , \qquad (3.7)$$
and using (3.6) we obtain

$$c(\tau) = \frac{1}{2} \leq \int_{a_{e}} \int_{a}^{a} \int_{a}^{(a_{e},b')} (t) + \int_{a}^{(a_{e},b')} (t+\tau) , \qquad (3.7)$$

$$+ \int_{b} \int_{c} \int_{a_{e}} \int_{a}^{a} \int_{a}^{(a_{e},b')} (t) + \int_{a}^{(a_{e},b')} (t+\tau) , \qquad (3.8)$$
which simplifies to

$$c(\tau) = \frac{1}{2} \leq \sum_{e} \int_{a_{e}} \int_{a}^{(a_{e},b')} (t) + \int_{a}^{(a_{e},b')} (t+\tau) , \qquad (3.8)$$
(3.9)

1

14

610 South and a set

-

The second term in (3.9) is of course, the pure intracollisional term whose treatment is similar to that of the pure intracollisional term, (2.10), in Chapter 2. It can be written in the temporal superposition approximation as

 $\langle \Sigma \Sigma \mu^{+(ab)}(t) \cdot \mu^{+(ab)}(t + \tau) \rangle$

 $= \sum_{\substack{c,c,\\c\neq c}} N_{cc} \cdot \nabla < \vec{u}_{1}(t) + \vec{u}_{1}(t+\tau) > \sum_{1}^{cc}$ (3.10)

where W_{ee}^{-} is the total number of ee^{-} collisions per unit time per unit volume V, and $< \dots >_{1}^{ee^{-}}$ denotes the collisional average of the dipole moments induced in ee^{-} collisions, over all ee^{-} collisions. Substitution of (3.10) into (3.9) yields

 $C(\tau) = \langle \sum_{\varepsilon} \sum_{a_{\varepsilon}} \mu^{(a_{\varepsilon})}(t) \cdot \mu^{(a_{\varepsilon})}(t + \tau) \rangle$

 $- \mathbf{i}_{\mathbf{s}} \sum_{\substack{\mathbf{c},\mathbf{c}'\\\mathbf{c}}} N_{\mathbf{c}\mathbf{c}'} \nabla \mathbf{a}_{\mathbf{i}}^{\mathbf{c}}(\mathbf{b}) \cdot \mathbf{u}_{\mathbf{i}}^{\mathbf{c}}(\mathbf{c} + \tau) > \mathbf{i}^{\mathbf{c}\mathbf{c}'}$ (3.11)

which reduces to

 $C(\tau)/V = \sum_{\alpha,\beta} n_{\epsilon} q_{\mu}^{+} (a_{\epsilon}) (t) \cdot \mu^{+} (a_{\epsilon}) (t + \tau) >$

 $-i_{1}\sum_{\epsilon'} N_{\epsilon\epsilon} < \vec{\mu}_{1}(t) - \vec{\mu}_{1}(t + \tau) >_{1}^{\epsilon\epsilon'}$ (3.12)

We now introduce the temporal superposition approximation in the first term in (3.12). The total induced dipole moment in a particular molecule, a, will be represented by a temporal superposition for the dipole moments induced in isolated binary collisions, that is

 $\vec{\mu}^{(a_{\epsilon})}(t) = \sum_{a,i} \vec{\mu}_{i}(t-t_{i})$

where

 $a_i = 1'$ for $\varepsilon collisions$, $\varepsilon' \neq \varepsilon$ = 0 for $\varepsilon collisions$.

We then obtain

 $C(\tau)/\Psi = \sum_{e} (n_{e} < \sum_{i,j} a_{i} \hat{\mu}_{i} (t_{i}^{-} t_{i}) + a_{j} \hat{\mu}_{j} (t_{i}^{-} + \tau_{j}) >$

 $\frac{1}{2} \sum_{e} N_{ee} \langle \vec{\mu}_{i}(t) \cdot \vec{\mu}_{i}(t+\tau) \rangle \langle \vec{e} \rangle$ (3.13)

Taking out the intracollisional terms we obtain

EFE

 $C(\tau)_{intra} / v = \sum_{e} (n_e < \sum_{i} a_i^2 \dot{\mu}_i (t - t_i) \cdot \dot{\mu}_i (t + \tau - t_i) >$

- 5 $\sum_{e}, N_{ee}, \langle \dot{\mu}_i(t) + \ddot{\mu}_i(t + \tau) \rangle_i^{ee}$]

(3:15)

 $= \sum_{\varepsilon} (n_{\varepsilon} v_{\varepsilon} \sum_{\substack{\varepsilon \\ \varepsilon \neq \varepsilon}} \langle a_{1}^{z} \vec{\mu}_{1}(t) \cdot \vec{\mu}_{1} (t + t) \rangle_{1}^{\varepsilon \varepsilon'}$

 $= \frac{1}{2} \sum_{\substack{e \\ e \neq e'}} \left(\frac{1}{2} \sum_{i \in I} \left(\frac{1}{2} \frac{1}{4} \frac{1}{4} (t) + \frac{1}{4} \frac{1}{4} \frac{1}{4} (t' + t) \right) \right)$ (3.14)

where v_e is the collision frequency of an c molecule with all other molecules in the gas. In analogy to similar quantities defined in section 2.3, we write

Since the quantity $< ... >_{1}^{2^{(n)}}$ is a collisional average over c: collisions, the fraction of the coefffcients a_{1}^{2} that are nonzero is given by $u_{ce^{(n)}}$, where $u_{ce^{(n)}}$ is the relative frequency of cs' coellisions in the collision history of a molecule of species c. / Again, this quantity is closely related to the rolative frequencies defined in section 2.3. We have

 $u_{\varepsilon\varepsilon'} = N_{\varepsilon\varepsilon'} / \sum_{\varepsilon'} N_{\varepsilon\varepsilon'}$ (3.16)

Thus, we can write (3.14) as

 $v_{\varepsilon} = \sum_{n_{\varepsilon} \varepsilon} N_{\varepsilon \varepsilon} / n_{\varepsilon}$

 $C(\tau)_{intra} = \sum_{\varepsilon, \varepsilon} [n_{\varepsilon} v_{\varepsilon} u_{\varepsilon\varepsilon}, - N_{\varepsilon\varepsilon} / 2]$

 $\mathbf{x} < \vec{\mu}_{i} (\mathbf{t}) \cdot \vec{\mu}_{i} (\mathbf{t} + \tau) > \mathbf{\hat{s}} \mathbf{\hat{c}}^{\dagger}$ (3.17)

Using (3.15) and (3.16), this reduces immediately to

$$C(\tau)_{intra}/v = \frac{u_i}{c_{eee}} \int_{c_{eee}} u_{eee} \cdot \langle \tilde{\mu}_1(t) - \tilde{\mu}_1(t, +\tau) \rangle_1^{ced}$$
(3.18)

In the case of a binary mixture this expression reduces to our previous result, (2.14), for the intracollisional autocorrelation function.

We now consider the intercollisional terms in (3:13),

$$C(\tau)_{inter} / \nabla = \sum_{e} n_{e} \langle \sum_{\substack{i=1\\i\neq j}} a_{i} \vec{\mu}_{i} (t - t_{i}) - a_{j} \vec{\mu}_{j} (t + \tau - t_{j}) \rangle, \quad (3.19)$$

This can be rearranged into a sum of series, with one series for each species. The nth term of each series expresses the correlation between the ith and the $(i + n)^{th}$ collisions for that particular species:

$$(\tau)_{inter} / V = \sum_{\varepsilon} n_{\varepsilon} \sum_{n} C_{n}^{\varepsilon} (\tau)$$
 (3.20)

where.

$$\mathcal{L}_{\mathbf{n}}^{\mathbf{c}}(\tau) = \langle [a_{\mathbf{i}} \boldsymbol{\mu}_{\mathbf{i}}(t-t_{\mathbf{i}}) \cdot a_{\mathbf{i}+\mathbf{n}} \boldsymbol{\mu}_{\mathbf{i}+\mathbf{n}}(t+\tau-t_{\mathbf{i}}-x_{\mathbf{i}}) \rangle$$

 $+ a_{i+n} \dot{\mu}_{i+n} (t - t_i - x_i) + a_i \dot{\mu}_i (t + \tau - t_i)] >^{\varepsilon} (3.21)$

where $x_i = t_{i+1} - t_i > 0$ is the interval between successive collisions, and $\langle \dots \rangle^c$ is the time average of the collision sequence of the c molecule. Using a time average in the above expression, that is

$$f > = \lim_{T \to \infty} \frac{1}{T} \int_{0}^{T} f(t) dt$$

we obtain

$$C_{n}^{\varepsilon}(\tau) = \lim_{T \to \infty} \frac{1}{T} \sum_{i=1}^{T} (C_{i,i+n}^{\varepsilon}(x_{i} + 1) + x_{i+n-1} - \tau)$$

 $e^{-1} + \hat{c}_{1,1+n}^{6} (x_{1}^{-1} + \ldots + x_{1+n-1}^{-1} + \tau)$ (3.22)

with.

$$c_{i,i+n}^{\varepsilon}(\tau) = \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} a_{i}\vec{\mu}_{i}(t) - a_{i+n}\vec{\mu}_{i+n}(t-\tau) dt \quad (3.22!)$$

where the i's denote the collision variables of a molecule of species ε .

The expression on the right hand side of (3.22) is equal to the collision frequency, $v_{\rm g}$, multiplied by the mean of the quantity in square brackets averaged over the time intervals x_1, \dots, x_{i+n-1} and over the collision variables $1, \dots, 1$ in. The average value of $C^{\rm c}_{i,1+n}(x_1 + \dots + x_{i+n-1} -$

95

over the collision variables is denoted by

 $< C_{i,i+n}^{\varepsilon}(x_i + \ldots + x_{i+n-1} - \tau_i)$

Then (3.22) can be written

$$C_{n}^{g}(\tau) = v_{g} \left[\int_{0}^{\pi} \dots \int_{0}^{\pi} p(x_{1}, \dots, x_{l+n-1}) \right]$$

$$\times \left\{ c_{1,j+n}^{g} (x_{1} + \dots + x_{l+n-1} - \tau) \right\}_{j}$$

$$(3.23)$$

+
$$\langle C_{i,i+n}^{\varepsilon}(\mathbf{x}_{i} + \ldots + \langle \mathbf{x}_{i+n-1} + \tau) \rangle_{i} d\mathbf{x}_{i} \cdots d\mathbf{x}_{i+n-1}$$

where $p(x_1, \dots, x_{i+n-1})$ is the probability distribution of the collision intervals x_1, \dots, x_{i+n-1} for an *c* mollayse. From our expression for the line shape function, (2.2), and (3.20), we obtain

$$\tilde{w}(\omega)_{\text{inter}} / v = \sum_{\varepsilon} n_{\varepsilon} \sum_{n} \tilde{w}_{n}^{\varepsilon}(\omega)$$
 (3.24)

where

$$W_{n}^{\varepsilon}(\omega) = \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} e^{i\omega\tau} C_{n}^{\varepsilon}(\tau) d\tau$$
 (3.25)

It is now our task to evaluate the quantities $w_n^{\epsilon}(\omega)$

appearing in (3.24) and sum the series to obtain a closed

expression for the intercollisional line shape function per unit volume, $W(\omega)_{inter}/V$,

As in Chapter 2, to evaluate $W_{n}^{c}(\omega)$ we choose an n, and consider all possible non-zero collision sequences that an é molecule can undergo. By a mon-zero collision sequence, we mean of course that at least two dipole moments are induced in that collision sequence. We evaluate each contribution of the different sequences separately, and then sum them to give $W_{n}^{c}(\omega)$. In fact, we find that after evaluating $W_{1}^{c}(\omega)$ and $W_{2}^{c}(\omega)$, that the form of $W_{n}^{c}(\omega)$ can be easily deduced. Our derivation will closely parallel that of

$$\begin{split} W(\omega)_{inter}(V \text{ in the binary mixture case, performed in Chapter 2.}\\ The major difference in the two derivations is that for an arbitrary number of species there are many more possible collision sequences that a molecule can undergo. The details of collisional averaging will not be repeated here, and we evaluate the correlation coefficients <math>\widehat{\phi_1} + \widehat{\psi_{1+n}}_1$$
 by generalizing our previously obtained expressions to include the other terms that arises when an arbitrary number of species is considered.

Setting n = 1, we find that the contribution $W^{0}_{1}(\omega)$ is due to collision sequences where an ε molecule undergoes two successive collisions with non-e molecules. These

sequences are shown schematically in Figure 3.1.



Figure 3.1: Collision sequences of a molecule of species c for n=1.

Then from (3.25) and (3.23) we obtain

$$W_{1}^{\varepsilon}(\omega) = 2v_{\varepsilon} \operatorname{Re}\left[\sum_{\substack{\gamma \neq 0 \\ \gamma \neq \delta \neq \varepsilon}} \tilde{p}_{\varepsilon\delta}(\omega) \ u_{\varepsilon\gamma} u_{\varepsilon\delta} \sqrt{\tilde{\mu}}_{1} + \overline{\tilde{\mu}}_{1+1} \right], \qquad (3,26)$$

where

$$\tilde{p}_{\varepsilon\delta}(\omega) = \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} e^{-i\omega x_1} p_{\varepsilon\delta}(x_1) dx_1 , \qquad (3.27)$$

and $p_{e\delta}(\mathbf{x}_k)$ is the probability distribution of collision intervals \mathbf{x}_i for 65 collisions. The quantities $\mathbf{u}_{e\chi}$ and $\mathbf{u}_{e\delta}$ are respectively, the relative collision frequencies of ry and 65 collisions in the collision history of an 6 molecule. $\sqrt{\tilde{p}}_i < \overline{\tilde{\mu}}_{k+1}$ denotes the averages taken over the collision variables of the relevant collisions. As mentioned previously, we yill not explicitly derive them here, but deduce their form from our work on collisional averaging in Chapter 2 (specifically equations (2.32), (2.34), and (2.37)). We find that

$$\langle \overline{\hat{\mu}}_{\underline{i}} \cdot \overline{\hat{\mu}}_{\underline{i}+\underline{i}} \rangle_{\underline{i}} = \int_{0}^{\infty} dc_{\underline{i}+\underline{i}} \int_{0}^{\infty} dc_{\underline{i}} A_{\underline{e}}^{Y}(c_{\underline{i}+\underline{i}}) \delta_{\underline{e}}^{\delta}(c_{\underline{i}+\underline{i}}) P_{\underline{e}}(c_{\underline{i}}) \quad (3.28)$$

where

$$A_{\varepsilon}^{\Upsilon}(c_{1}) = \int_{0}^{\infty} dc_{1}^{*} A_{\varepsilon}^{\Upsilon}(c_{1}^{*} | c_{1})$$

with

(3.29)

$$\mathsf{A}_{\varepsilon}^{\mathbf{Y}}(\mathbf{c}_1'|\mathbf{c}_1) = \int_{\mathbf{c}_1}^{\mathbf{T}} \mathsf{d}\xi \, \sin\xi \, \int_{\mathbf{c}_1 \in [1, \infty]}^{\mathbf{T}} \mathsf{d}g \, \overline{\mu}(\mathbf{g}, \mathbf{c}) \, \cos \, \mathbf{n}_{\varepsilon} \, \mathbf{P}_{\varepsilon \mathbf{Y}}(\mathbf{g}, \boldsymbol{\xi}, \mathbf{c}_1'|\mathbf{c}_1)$$

and

$$B_{c}^{\delta}(c_{1}'|c_{1}) = \int_{0}^{\pi} d\xi \sin \xi \int_{0}^{\infty} dg \ \overline{\mu}(g,c) \ cos \ n' \ P_{c\delta}(g,\xi,c_{1}'|c_{1}). \tag{3.30}$$

The collision variables $(\hat{c}_1, c_1', \xi, \phi, q, q_2)$, η and n' are as defined in Chapter 2. The quantities $P(q, \xi, c_1' | c_1)$ are the conditional probability distributions of q, ξ , and c_1' for a given c_1 , subscripted for the appropriate collisions.

We note also that there now appears in our expression \sim for W⁵₂(ω), (3.26), a double summation over non-c molecules to take into account all possible non-zero collision sequences.

We now consider the contribution to the spectrum for n=2. $W_{2}^{\mu}(a)$ is due to collision sequences in which an ϵ molecule, initially collides with a non- ϵ molecule, experiences a second collision with any species, and then undergdes a third collision with a non- ϵ molecule. These sequences are depicted below.





Figure 3.2 Collision sequences of a molecule of species ε for n=2.

From (3.25) and (3.23) we obtain

n=2

 $W_{2}^{\varepsilon}(\omega) = 2v_{\varepsilon} \operatorname{Re}\left[\sum_{\substack{\gamma,\delta \\ \gamma,\delta \neq \varepsilon}} \sum_{\mathbf{x}} \tilde{p}_{\varepsilon \chi}(\omega) \tilde{p}_{\varepsilon \delta}(\omega)\right]$

99.

 $\times u_{\epsilon\gamma} u_{\epsilon\chi} u_{\epsilon\delta} \langle \overline{\mu}_{1} \cdot \overline{\mu}_{1+2} \rangle_{1}^{3}$ (3.31)

where $\langle \vec{t}_1 \cdot \vec{t}_{1+2} \rangle_1$ again denotes the averages taken over the collision variables of the relevant collisions. From Chapter 2, using our given collision sequences we obtain

$$\begin{split} \widehat{\varphi_{i}} &: \widetilde{\overline{\mu}}_{i+2} \widehat{z}_{i} := \int_{0}^{\pi} d\mathbf{c}_{i+2} \int_{0}^{\pi} d\mathbf{c}_{i+1} \int_{0}^{\pi} d\mathbf{c}_{i} \\ &: A_{0}^{\mu}(\mathbf{c}_{i+2}) \cdot a_{0} \chi(\mathbf{c}_{i+2} | \mathbf{c}_{i+1}) \cdot \mathbf{s}_{0}^{\delta}(\mathbf{c}_{i+1} | \mathbf{c}_{1}) \cdot \mathbf{p}_{0}(\mathbf{c}_{1}) \cdot \end{split}$$
(3.32)

where

$$\Delta_{\varepsilon\chi}(c_1'|c_1) = \int_0^\infty d\xi \sin \xi \cos \xi \underline{P}_{\varepsilon\chi}(\xi;c_1'|c_1) \quad (3.33)$$

and $P_{e\chi}(\xi,c_1'|c_1)$ is the conditional distribution of ξ,c_1' for given c_1 for c_2 collisions.

Using (3.32), we can rewrite (3.31) as

$$w_{2}^{\varepsilon}(\omega) = 2v_{\varepsilon} \operatorname{Re}\left[\sum_{\substack{\gamma,\delta \\ \gamma,\delta \neq \varepsilon}} \tilde{p}_{\varepsilon\delta}(\omega) u_{\varepsilon\gamma} u_{\varepsilon\delta} \int_{0}^{\infty} dc_{i+2} \int_{0}^{\infty} dc_{i+1} \int_{0}^{\infty} dc_{i} \right]$$

$$\times A_{\varepsilon}^{\gamma}(c_{i+2}) [\sum_{\chi} \tilde{P}_{\varepsilon\chi}(\omega) \ u_{\varepsilon\chi} \Delta_{\varepsilon\chi}(c_{i+1}|c_i)] B_{\varepsilon}^{o}(c_{i+1}|c_i) P_{\varepsilon}(c_i)] . (3.34$$

Introducing the quantity

$$\Delta_{\varepsilon}(c_{1}|c_{1}) = \sum_{\chi} \tilde{p}_{\varepsilon\chi}(\omega) u_{\varepsilon\chi} \Delta_{\varepsilon\chi}(c_{1}|c_{1})$$
(3.34)

in analogy to $a_{\mathbf{h}}(\mathbf{c}'_1|\mathbf{c}_1)$, (2.53), we obtain

$$W_{1}^{\varepsilon}(\omega) \underbrace{\swarrow}_{Y,\delta} \operatorname{Re} \sum_{\substack{Y,\delta \\ Y,\delta \in \varepsilon}} \mathbb{E}_{\varepsilon\delta}(\omega) u_{\varepsilon} | u_{\varepsilon\delta} \int_{0}^{\omega} dc_{i+2} \int_{0}^{\omega} dc_{i+1} \int_{0}^{\omega} dc_{i}$$

$$\times \Lambda_{\varepsilon}^{\gamma}(\mathbf{c}_{i+2}) \ \Delta_{\varepsilon}(\mathbf{c}_{i+2}|\mathbf{c}_{i+1}) \ \beta_{\varepsilon}^{\delta}(\mathbf{c}_{i+1}|\mathbf{c}_{i}) \ \mathbb{P}_{\varepsilon}(\mathbf{c}_{i})].$$
 (3.36)

101

In general, we find that the $n^{t\,h}$ contribution to the spectrum, $W^{t}_{n}(\omega)$, has the form

$$W_{n}^{c}(\omega) = 2 v_{c} \operatorname{Re}\left[\sum_{\substack{\gamma \neq \delta \\ \gamma \neq \delta \neq c}} \tilde{p}_{c\delta}(\omega) u_{c\gamma} v_{c\delta} \int_{0}^{\infty} d\bar{c}_{1+n} \cdots \int_{0}^{\infty} dc_{1} \right]$$

(3.37)

which is a fairly obvious generalization of (2.55) for $W_n^A(\omega)$.

Then, from (3.37) and (3.24), we obtain for the intercollisional line shape function per unit volume,

$$\begin{split} & \texttt{W}(\omega)_{\texttt{inter}}/\forall = 2 \sum_{\varepsilon} n_{\varepsilon} v_{\varepsilon} \sum_{\substack{\gamma \in \delta \\ \gamma \in \delta \\ \gamma \in \delta \\ \varepsilon}} \Re(\beta_{\varepsilon} \beta_{\varepsilon} (\omega) v_{\varepsilon} \gamma^{\varepsilon} \xi_{\varepsilon} \delta_{\varepsilon} \frac{1}{n^{2}} \\ & (3,38) \\ & \int_{0}^{\pi} dc_{1} f_{\varepsilon}^{\gamma} (c_{1+n}) \delta_{\varepsilon} (c_{1+n} | c_{1+n-1}) \cdots \delta_{\varepsilon}^{\delta} (c_{1+1} | c_{1}) P_{\varepsilon} (c_{1})] \end{split}$$

We now wish to sum the series! in (3.38) to obtain

a closed expression for W(w)_inter/V. The further a collision is removed from an arbitrarily chosen initial collision, i, the less correlated it is with that initial collision. Therefore it is reasonable to assume that $W_n^{\varepsilon}(w)$ diminishes rapidly enough with increasing n for the series in $(3, 3\beta)$ to be convergent.

The quantity

$$\int_{\sigma}^{\infty} d\mathbf{c}_{i+n} \cdots \int_{\sigma}^{\infty} d\mathbf{c}_{i+2} \mathbf{A}_{\varepsilon}^{\gamma} (\mathbf{c}_{i+n}) \mathbf{\Delta}_{\varepsilon} (\mathbf{c}_{i+n}|\mathbf{c}_{i+n-1}) \cdots \mathbf{\Delta}_{\varepsilon} (\mathbf{c}_{i+2}|\mathbf{c}_{i+1})$$

in (3.38) is the nth term in the Neumann expansion of the Fredholm equation

$$\mathbf{G}_{\varepsilon}^{\Upsilon}(\boldsymbol{\omega},\boldsymbol{c}_{\cdot}) = \mathbf{A}_{\varepsilon}^{\Upsilon}(\boldsymbol{c}_{\cdot}) + \int_{0}^{\infty} d\boldsymbol{c}_{\cdot}^{\prime} \boldsymbol{\Delta}_{\varepsilon}(\boldsymbol{c}_{\cdot}^{\prime} | \boldsymbol{c}_{\cdot}) \mathbf{G}_{\varepsilon}^{\Upsilon}(\boldsymbol{\omega},\boldsymbol{c}_{\cdot}^{\prime}) \quad . \tag{3.39}$$

We have assumed that the Neumann expansions will be convergent, hence we obtain

$$\begin{split} \mathbb{W}(\omega)_{\texttt{inter}}/\mathbb{V} &= 2 \sum_{\varepsilon} \frac{1}{\gamma} \mathbb{E}^{\mathbb{V}_{\varepsilon}} \sum_{\substack{\gamma, \delta \\ \gamma, \delta \neq \varepsilon}} \frac{\sum_{\varepsilon} \mathbb{P}_{\varepsilon\delta}(\omega) \mathbb{U}_{\varepsilon\gamma} \mathbb{U}_{\varepsilon\delta}}{\gamma, \delta \neq \varepsilon} \end{split}$$

$$\int_{0}^{\infty} d\mathbf{c}_{1}^{\prime} \int_{0}^{\infty} d\mathbf{c}_{1} G_{\varepsilon}^{\mathsf{Y}}(\omega, \mathbf{c}_{1}^{\prime}) \mathcal{B}_{\varepsilon}^{\delta}(\mathbf{c}_{1}^{\prime} | \mathbf{c}_{1}) \mathbf{P}_{\varepsilon}(\mathbf{c}_{1})] \qquad (3.49)$$

We now derive an expression for the intracollisional line , shape function per unit volume, $W(\omega)_{intra}/V$. Recalling our

expression for the intracollisional autocorrelation function,

$$C(\tau)_{intra}/V = \frac{1}{2} \sum_{\substack{e,e'\\e\neq e'}} N_{ee'} s_{i}^{e}(t) \cdot \hat{\psi}_{i}(t+\tau) s_{i}^{ee'}$$

and taking the Fourier transform of the above, we obtain

$$W(\omega)_{intra}/V = \underbrace{\prod_{\substack{e,e'\\exe'}}^{\mu} e_{e}, \widehat{\psi}_{i}(\omega) - \widehat{\psi}_{i}(-\omega) \stackrel{ee'}{\downarrow}}_{ee'}^{ee'} (3.41)$$

where $\vec{\mu}_1(\omega)$ is the Fourier transform of the induced dipole moment $\vec{\mu}_1(\tau)$. Expression (3.41) reduces to

$$\mathbf{x}(\omega)_{intra} / \underline{v} = \frac{1}{2} \sum_{\substack{e_1 e_1 \\ e_2 e_1}} \mathbf{x}_{ee} \cdot \langle \overline{\mu}_{\underline{z}}^2 \rangle_{\underline{z}} , \qquad (3.42)$$

upon using our approximation

$$\vec{\mu}_{i}(\omega) = \vec{\mu}_{i}(0) = \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} \vec{\mu}_{i}(\tau) d\tau = \vec{p}_{i}$$

The quantity $<\bar{\mu}_1^2>_1$ has been evaluated in Chapter 2, (2.64), and we obtain

$$\langle \tilde{\mu}_1^i \rangle_1 = \int_0^{\omega} dc_1 P_{\varepsilon}(c_1) \int_0^{\omega} dc_1' \frac{\kappa_{\varepsilon}^{\varepsilon'}}{\epsilon_{\varepsilon}} (c_1') c_1 \rangle$$

where

(3.43)

$$\mathbf{X}_{\varepsilon}^{\varepsilon'}\left(\mathbf{c}_{1}^{*}\right|\mathbf{c}_{1}\right) = \int_{0}^{\pi} \mathbf{d} \, \boldsymbol{\xi} \, \sin \, \boldsymbol{\xi} \, \int_{0}^{\infty} \mathbf{d} g \, \overline{\mu}^{*} \, \mathbf{P}_{\varepsilon\varepsilon'}\left(g, \boldsymbol{\xi}, \mathbf{c}_{1}^{*}\right|\mathbf{c}_{1}\right)$$

The line shape function for the collision-induced

absorption spectrum is given by

$$W(\omega)/V = W(\omega)_{intra}/V + W(\omega)_{inter}/V$$

thus combining (3.40), (3.42) with (3.43) yields

$$W(\omega)/V = \sum_{\substack{\epsilon,\delta \\ \delta \neq \epsilon}} \int_{0}^{\infty} dc_1 P_{\epsilon}(c_1) \int_{0}^{\infty} dc_1' (h_1 N_{\epsilon\delta} K_{\epsilon}^{\delta}(c_1' | c_1))$$

$$+ 2 a_{\beta} v_{\varepsilon} u_{\varepsilon \delta} \sum_{\gamma} Re[\tilde{p}_{\varepsilon \delta}(\omega) u_{\varepsilon \gamma} G_{\varepsilon}^{\gamma}(\omega, c_{1}^{\prime}) B_{\varepsilon}^{\delta}(c_{1}^{\prime}|c_{1})] \}$$

$$\sum_{\substack{\ell \neq \delta \\ \delta \neq c}}^{N} N_{\epsilon\delta} \int_{0}^{\infty} dc_{1} P_{\epsilon}(c_{1}) \int_{0}^{\infty} dc_{1}' (k K_{\epsilon}^{\delta}(c_{1}'|c_{1})) dc_{1}' (k K_{\epsilon}^{\delta}(c_{1}'|$$

+ 2 $\sum_{\substack{\gamma \\ \gamma \\ \gamma \\ \gamma}} u_{\epsilon \gamma} \operatorname{Re}\left[\widetilde{p}_{\epsilon \delta}\left(\omega\right) G_{\epsilon}^{\gamma}\left(\omega, c_{1}^{\prime}\right) B_{\epsilon}^{\delta}\left(c_{1}^{1} \mid c_{1}\right)\right]$ (3.44)

We now have an expression for the reduced line shape function for the collision-induced absorption spectrum of a gas mixture of arbitrary composition. No assumptions about the number of species, and the relative masses and mole fractions of these species have been made. Thus (3.44) should be generally applicable within the bounds of the underlying assumptions

of the theory. The primary limitation is of course the low density restriction. However, as with the expression for $W(\omega)/V$ obtained in Chapter 2, application of (3.44) in its general form is extremely difficult, and we introduce a simplification to make computations easier.

3.3 Simplified Expression for the Line Shape Function

We employ the same approximation here as was used in section 2.7. That is, we will replace the quantities $\delta_{e,\chi}(c_1|c_2)$ by their corresponding mean persistance-ofvelocity ratio $\tilde{\delta}_{e,\chi}$ as defined in (2,30). This approximation is discussed in greater detail in section 2.7 and in TIE 2. Using the expression

$$\Delta_{\varepsilon\gamma}(c_1|c_1) \simeq \tilde{\Delta}_{\varepsilon\gamma}\delta(c_1-c_1) , \qquad (3.45)$$

where 6 is the Dirac delta function, in our expression (3.39) for Fredholm equations, we obtain

$$\Delta_{\mu}^{\gamma}(\omega, c_1) = \Lambda_{\epsilon}^{\gamma}(c_1) / (1 - \tilde{\Delta}_{\epsilon}(\omega))$$
(3.46)

where

$$\tilde{\Delta}_{\varepsilon}(\omega) = \sum_{\alpha} \tilde{p}_{\varepsilon \chi}(\omega) u_{\varepsilon \chi} \tilde{\Delta}_{\varepsilon \chi}$$
(3.4)

Substituting (3.46) into (3.44) yields

$$\widetilde{W}(\omega)/\nabla = \sum_{\varepsilon',\delta} N_{\varepsilon\delta'} \int_{0}^{\infty} dc_1 P_{\varepsilon'}(c_1) \int_{0}^{\infty} dc_1 (I_3 K_{\varepsilon}^{\delta}(c_1'|c_1)$$

+ 2 $\sum_{Y} u_{eY} \operatorname{Re} \{ \tilde{P}_{e\delta}(\omega) A_{e}^{Y}(c_{1}^{*}) B_{e}^{\delta}(c_{1}^{*} | c_{1}) / (1 - \tilde{A}_{e}(\omega)) \} \}$ (3.48) yre

106

Introducing the quantities

$$S_{2}^{3} = Y_{2} \int_{0}^{\infty} dc_{1} P_{c}(c_{1}) \int_{0}^{\infty} dc_{1}' K_{c}^{0}(c_{1}'|c_{1})$$
(3.49)

 $\alpha_{\epsilon}^{\gamma \delta} = \int_{0}^{\infty} d\mathbf{c}_{1} P_{\epsilon} (\mathbf{c}_{1}) \int_{0}^{\infty} d\mathbf{c}_{1}^{\gamma} A_{\epsilon}^{\gamma} (\mathbf{c}_{1}) B_{\epsilon}^{\delta} (\mathbf{c}_{1}^{\gamma} | \mathbf{c}_{1}), \qquad (3.50)$

we obtain

and

$$W(\omega)/V = \sum_{\substack{e,c,b\\e,c}} N_{ec} \left(C_{e}^{\delta} + 2 \sum_{i} u_{ev} \operatorname{Re}[\tilde{p}_{e,\delta}(\omega) \alpha_{e}^{i\delta} / (1 - \tilde{\Delta}_{e}(\omega))] \right). \quad (3.51)$$

Expression (3.51) is applicable to mixtures of arbitrary composition. It holds for arbitrary numbers of species, arbitrary concentration ratios and arbitrary masses for those species. Like TIEE 1-5 it assumes pairwise additive central forces and induced dipole moments, and densities sufficiently low that temporal superposition is valid. Like the earlier work it is the result of a kinetic theory. Like TIEE 3 it neglects certain four-body correlations: On these points of comparison it represents the furthest development of the ideas on which the earlier work on intercollisional interference was based. Further development will require major extension of the foundations of the theory to include some four-body correlations, for example, or noncentral forces, ternary and higher-order collisions and non-additive interactions, and even inclusive collisions.

REFERENCES

Chandresekhar, S., 1943. Revs. Mod. Phys. 15, 1.

Chapman, S. and Cowling, T. G. "The Mathematical Theory of Non-Uniform Gases" 3rd edition Cambridge University Press 1976. Library of Congress Catalogue Card Number: 70-77285.

Cohen, E. D. G. (ed.) "Fund. Prob. in Stat. Mech." North-Holland 1975. ISBN 0-7204-0324-3 articles by

J. R. Dorfman, W. W. Wood, and P. Mazur .

Grawford, M. F., Welsh, H. L. and Locke, J. L. 1949, Phys. Rev. 75, 1607.

Dagg, J. R., Reesor, G. E. and Urbaniak, J. L. 1974. Can.

J. Phys. 52, 821.

de Remigis, J., Mactaggart, J. W. and Welsh; H. L. 1971,

Can. J. Phys. 49, 381.

Hare, W. J. F. and Welsh, H. L. 1958. Can. J. Phys. <u>36</u>, 88. Hirschfelder, J. O. Curtiss, C. F. and Bird, R. B. "Molecular

Theory of Gases and Liquids" John Wiley and Sons

Inc. 1967. Library of Congress Catalogue Card Number: 54-7621.

Hunt, J. L. and Welsh, H. L. 1964. Can. J. Phys. <u>12</u>, 873. Levine, H.B. 1967. Phys. Rev. <u>160</u>, 159. Levine, H. B. and Birnbaum, G. 1967. Phys. Rev. <u>154</u>, 86.

Lewis, J. C. 1972. Can. J. Phys. 50, 2881.

Lewis, J. C. 1973. Can. J. Phys. 51, 2455.

Lewis, J. C. 1982. Private Communication.

Lewis, J. C. and Tjon, J. A. 1978. Physica, 91A, 161.

109

Lewis, J. C. and Van Kranendonk, J. 1972. Can. J. Phys. 50, 352.

Lewis, J. C. and Van Kranendonk, J. 1972b. Can. J. Phys. 50, 2902.

Mactaggart, J. W. 1971. Ph.D. Thesis University of

Toronto, Toronto Ontario. (unpublished)

Marteau, P., Vu, H. and Vodar, B. 1968. Compt. Rend. 2 1068.

Muc, A. M., Reesor, G. E. and Dagg, J. R. 1971 Can, J. Phys. 49. 1970.

Okada, K., Kajikawa, J. and Yamamoto, T. 1968. Prog. Theo. Phys. (Japan) <u>39</u>, 863.

Poll, J. D. and Van Kranendonk, J. 1961. Can J. Phys. <u>39</u>, 189.

Poll, J. D., Hunt, J. L. and Mactaggart, J. W. 1975. Can. J. Phys. 53, 954.

Purcell, E. M. 1960. Phys. Rev. 117, 828.

Reddy, S. P. and Chang, K. S. 1973. J. Mol. Spectrosc. <u>47</u>, 22.

Reddy, S. P. and Lee, W. F. 1968. Can. J. Phys. <u>46</u>, 1373.Reed, T. M. and Gubbins, K. E. "Applied Statistical Mechanics" McGraw-Hill 1973. ISBN 0-07-051495-X. Rich, N. H. and McKellar, A. R. W. 1976. Can. J. Phys. <u>54</u>,

110

Sears, V. F. 1968. Can. J. Phys. <u>46</u>, 1163, 1501. Tanimoto, O. 1956. Prog. Theo. Phys. <u>33</u>, 585.

Trfcomi, P. G. 1957. "Integral Equations" (Interscience New York).

Van Kranendonk, J. 1957., Physica, <u>23</u>, 825.

Van Kranendonk, J. 1958. Physica, 24, 347.

Van Kranendonk, J. 1959. Physica, 25, 337.

Van Kranendonk, J. 1968. Can. J. Phys. 46, 1173.

Van Kranendonk, J. and Bird, R. B. 1952. Physica, 17, 953;

968.

Van Kranendonk, J. and Kiss, Z. J. 1959. Can. J. Phys. <u>37</u>, 1187.

Welsh, H. L. 1972. Int. Rev. Sci. Phys. Chem. 3, 33.

Welsh, H. L. 1974. Physics in Canada, 30, 84.

Wong, M. 1978, Ph.D. Thesis University of Waterloo, Waterloo Ontario:

Zaidi, H. R. and Van Kranendonk, J. 1971 Can. J. Phys. 49,

385.

Zwanzig, R. 1963. Phys. Rev. 129, 486.







